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The C of the positie inform group 

COMBINEI) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



The schedules of historical pensio'~ information listed as Exhibits J-1 and J-2 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the sup.plementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

February 28, 1997 



KPMG! Peat: Marwick LLP 
1900 Comrnercial Na~ionalTowe 333 Texas Street Shrevepo~,LA711013692 

To the Honorable Members of the City Council and the Honorable George Dement, Mayor City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 
We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements and the combining, individual fund, and account group financial statements and schedules of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 1996, as listed in the accompanying Table of Contents as Exhibits 1-8 and Exhigits A-1 to I- 1. These financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana, management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedules based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority whose statements reflect total assets of $17,541,504 as of November 30, 1996, and total revenues of $1,252,937 for the year then ended. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion on the general purpose financial statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Bo;sier Public Trust Financing Authority in the component unit columns of Exhibits 1,4, 5 and 7, is based on the report of the other auditors. 



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT- OPINION OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council February 28, 1997 
Sneeial Revenue Funds Special revenue funds are used to accoum for the proceeds of specific revenue sources. The total revenues of $16,982,629 from these sources for 1996 reflects a net increase of 12.9% from 1995. Sales and use taxes, riverboat gaming, video poker, and intergoverumental revenues generated !)1.4% of the total 1996 revenues compared to 92.8% in 1995. Sales tax revenues of $3,213,803 we:e recorded in three special revenue funds established for the purposes of constructing and c, perating two new fire stations and a training facility, maintaining and operating the City jail an:t municipal buildings, and repair and maintenance of streets and drainage. Riverboat gaming revenue of $10,402,409 was received during 1996 as part of the agreement with the two riveJboats that became operational during 1994. These funds have been accumulated until the $15,000,000 base amount created by ordinance was attained. The Ordinance also requires that 50% of the revenue received after the $15,000,000 base amount has been attained is to be used for capital and other undetermined projects and 50% added to the base amount. In 1996, fi5,083,524 was transferred from the Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fund to the water and sewage funds to begin construction on water and sewer expansion. At December 31, 1996, there are no amounts available for transfer from the fund. Intergovemmental revenues 3f $1,533,009 consisted primarily of Community Development Block Grant monies expended for programs designed to benefit low and moderate income residents and an allocation of $525,000 from the State of Louisiana for the operation of the Civic Center. The Civic Cen:er, in its sixth full year of operation, generated total revenues of $785,846, primarily from th(; State grant and rental fees. Other special revenue funds were used to account for the Metropolitan Planning Commission and the Court Witness Fee Fund. Debt Administration The ratio of net bonded debt to assessed valuation and the amount of bonded debt per capita are useful indicators of the City',, financial position. Bonded indebtedness activity for 1996, which consists of revenue bonds applicable to general city, water and sewerage, and Medical Center operations, is summarized in the following table: 
Bonds payable at January 1, 1996 New Issue Bonds Refunded Debt retired - serial bo~lds Gain on revenue bond refunding Amortization of gain on refunding 

$ 57,300,000 7,595,000 (6,6O5,OOO) (3,025,000) (1,251,537) I19,693 Bonds payable at Dece tuber 31, 1996 $ 54,133,156 At December 31, 1996, there was no general obligation debt recorded in the financial statements of the City. Tables 6 to 10C of this report present more detailed information about the debt position of the City. 
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Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Presented to 
City of Bossier City, Louisiana For :ts Comprehensive Annual Financial Report fcr the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1995 A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting is pzesented by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada to government units and public employee retirement systems whose comprehensive annual financial reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest standards in government accounting and financial reporting. 

XVlll 



The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council February '.28, 1997 
Cerlificale of Achievement of Excellence The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Bossier City for its complehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement lor Excellence is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report continues to conform to Certificate of Achievement for Excellence Program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. Acknowle__d_gments The prep~-ation of 'this report coul6 not be aecon'~plished "~ithoul the eff~c:,ent an6 degieated services of the entire staff of Ihe Finance Department and the assistance of the City's extemal auditors, KPMG Peat: Marwick LLP. I would like to express my appreciation to all members of the Department who assisted and contributed to its preparation. I would also like to thank the Mayor and the members o::" the City Council for their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial opera:ions of the City in a responsible and progressive manner. Respectfully submitted, 

xvn 

Charles E. Glover Director of Finance 



The Honorable George Dem~ nt, Mayor and Members of the City Council February 28, 1997 
The operating revenues of the water and sewer systems have continued to improve during 1996 due primarily to increased selvice revenues and continuation of the meter replacement program. Operating expenses have increased due to increased personnel and repair and maintenance Costs. Comparative data for the Bossier Medical Center and Emergency Medical Services for the pas two years is presented in the :'ollowing tabulation: 

Bossier Medical Cenre 1996 l_9_~fi Gross operating revenues," 51,028,410 53,521,501 Operating expenses 48.890.94.9.. _48.40_6,108 Operating income (Loss) ',; 2,137.J~4_61. _ 5,115,393 Net income (loss) ',; 1,403,94_1_ _ 2.~J_79__0~264 

OTHER INFORMATION 

XVI 

Emergency Medical Services 1996 1995 1,646,624 1,676,832 J ,679,85_7_ 1_~565,794 (33,233_) 111,038 ..~_16,772) 128,165 



The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council February 28, 1997 

Canital Proiect Funds The capital project funds are u ;ed to account for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds or trust funds. Expenditures for capital improvement projects in 1996 totaled $6,178,293. The primary sources of funding the City's capital improvement program are sales taxes. The capital project funds balances, totaling $11,095,957 at December 31, 1996, were invested through the City's cash mana;ement program in certificates of deposit and U.S. government obligations. General Fixed Assets 

Comparative data for the wate:" and sewerage system for the past two fiscal years is presented in the following tabulation: 1996 __ 1995 W_a_t_er .Sewer Water .Sewer Gross operating revenues $ 4,431,678 4,495,843 3,948,019 4,429,264 Operating expenses 3,(~28.~0~S~ 3,907,174 ~,084,265. 3.772,846 Operating income $ 80"~,_6_26 588,669 

XV 

863.754 



The Honorable George DemerI, Mayor and Members of the City Council February 28, 1997 
Pension Plans 

The unfunded actuarial liability of the Firemen's and Policemen's Plans increased more than expected this year due to salary increases which are passed on to retirees in the form of increased benefit payments. Generally, the unfunded actuarial liability of these plans can be expected to increase for the next few years before beginning to decrease. Growth in these numbers should not be viewed as an indication of underfunding as the City continues to keep the plans actumially sound by making the required contributions. A one-half cent sales tax was approved by the voters in 1982 with a portion of the tax dedicated to liquidate the unfunded liabilities of the Fire and Police Pension and Relief Funds over 30 years. 

XIV 



 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY. LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
Complete financial :;tatements of the individual component units may be obtained at the following addresses: City Court of Bossier City P.O. Box 5337 Bossier City, Louisiana 71171 Bossier City Marshal's Office P.O. Box 5337 Bossier City, Louisiana 71171 Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority 710 Benton Road Bossier City, Louisiana 71171 Otlaer Related Organizations Bossier Housing Authority The Bossier Housing Authority was created by state statute, and it is legally separate from the City. The Mayor appoints the five commissioners; however, the City cannot impose its will on the Bossier Housing Authority since it does not have the ability to modity or approve the budget or overrule or modify the decisions of the commissioners. The Bossier Housing Authority is fiscally independent and there is no financial benefit or burden relationship with the City. Therefore, it is not included in the City's financial statements. Industrial Park Fund The Industrial Park Fund was organized in 1976 as a joint venture between the City and the Bossier Parish Police Jury for the purpose of purchasing land and the development of an industrial park. The City has a 50 percent interest in the assets of the Industrial Park Fund. Both governing bodies share equally in the approval process for budgeting and financing activities. Advances by the City to the Industrial Park Fund have been expensed in the fund making th~ advance, and the City's equity interest in the net assets of the fund has not been zecorded in the General Fixed Asset Account Group because it is immaterial. 

(Continued) 



(6) 
CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
Comp~,rison of budgeled and actual amounts as shown in Exhibit 3 in the accompanying financial report includes the General Fund and those special revenue funds which are included in the annual operating budget (Metropolitan Planning Commission, Civic Center, Fire Improvements and C)perations, Jail and Municipal Buildings, and Streets and Drainage). Annual operating budgets are not prepared for the State and Federal Grant, Court Witness Fee, and Riverboat Gaming special revenue funds, but rather these funds are budgeted oil a project basis. The c~tpital budget ordinances which encompass the capital projects funds present cumulative as opposed to annual budget amounts and thus budget and actual comparisons are not reported in the accompanying financial report for these funds. (7) The basis of accounting applied to budgetary data presented is substantially consistent with the appropriate basis of accounting for each fund t'./pe for which an annual budget is prepared. Appropriations which are not expended lapse at year-end, except appropriations for capital improvements, which do not lapse until the purpose of the approlzriation has been accomplished or abandoned. (8) The City is legally required to prepare annual operating budgets for the Department of Water and Sewerage, Bossier Medical Center, and the Emergency Medical Services. The annual operating and capital budgets of the Bossier Medical Center me prepared by the staff of the hospital and a~ then reviewed and approved by the City Council. The City is not, however, required to present an actual-to-budget comparison for the enlerprise funds. Budgets are not prepared for the internal service funds. (E) _Encun!brances_ Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitmenls for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed in the governmental funds. Open encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund balances since the ecmmitments will be honored through subsequent years' budget appropriations. Encunthrances do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. (F) lnvest_ments For all funds, e~.cept for the Pension Trust Funds and the Deferred Compensation Fund, investments are stated at cost or amortized cost. The investments at December 31, 1996, were primarily U.S. government and U.S. government agency securities (see note 2 for the City's investment policy). Investments of the Pension Trust Funds and the Deferred Compensation Fund are stated at fair value. 

22 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
accompanying financial statements were approximately $210,674 and $37,860, re~;pectively, at December 31, 1996. Management does not consider these amounts material to the financial position or results of operations o:" the Department of Water and Sewerage or the Emergency Medical Ser'~ices Fund. Tile City applies all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements in accounting and reporting for its proprietary operations at; well as the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB proncuncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board opinions, and Accounting, Research Bulletins. (D) Budg~a_ry Dala The City utilize,; the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in tLe financial statements: (1) Prior te October 15, the Mayor submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of finartcing them. (2) A public hearing is then conducted, after proper official journal notification, to obtain taxpayer comments. (3) Prior to December 15, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordilaance. (4) The bu Jget ordinance is structured such that revenues are budgeted by source, and appropriations are budgeted by department and by principal object of expenditure. The City Charter provides that expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations on a departmental basis after considering fund surpluses or deficits. The Council may revise or amend the budget at its discretion during legally convened sessions. Management may amend the budget only below the department level. Amendments to the budget were made and ado/~ted by the Council during 1996. (5) The Ci:y utilizes formal budgetary integration as a management control device for the General Fund, special revenue funds, and capital projects funds. This process is not employed for the debt service funds because effective budgetary control is acbieved through general bond indenture provisions. 

21 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSS~',R CITY, LOUISIANA Note5 to Combined Financial Statements 
(C) Basis of Acco'anting Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measuremenl focus applied. 

hands of intermediary collecting agencies and are recognized as revenue at that time. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred. Exceptions to this general rule include (1) accumulated unpaid vacation, sick pay, and other employee anr:ounts which are not accrued; and (2) principal and interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due. In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovemmental revenues, the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are however, essentially two types of these revenues. I~1 one, monies must be expended on the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In the other, monies are virtually unr~:stricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for faihtre to comply with prescribed compliance requirements. These resources ar(~ reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. Licenses and pc:nnits, charges for general governmental services, fines and penalties, Racing Commission revenues, video poker revenues, riverboat gaming revenues, and miscellaneous other revenues (except investment earnings) are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Taxes, charges for services, and investment earnings are recorded as earned since they are measurable and available (see note 3 for property tax accrual policy). The accrual basis of accounting is used by the proprietary and pension trust funds. Rew:nues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. The reserve method is used to account for bad debt expenses on enterprise fund receivables. Unbilled service revenues are not accrued by the City. l.lnbilled service receivables of the Department of Water and Sewerage Fund and Emergency Medical Services Fund not reflected in the 
20 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined I:inancial Statements 
All fixed assets ,Lre valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated faii value on the date donated. Lxmg-term liabil.fies expected to be financed from governmental funds are accounted fol in the General Long-Teml Obligation Account Group, not in the governmental funds. Long-.term liabilities accounted for in the General Long- "rcma Obligation Account Group are retired from the General Fund and debt service funds while long-tefm liabilities accounted for in the proprietary funds are retired from the respective funds in which they are recorded. The two account groups are not "funds." They are concerned only with the measurement of financial position. They are not involved with measurement of results of operations. Special reporting; treatments are also applied to governmental fund prepaid expenditures to indicate that they do not represent "available spendable resources," even though they are a component of net current assets. Such amounts are ~:enerally offset by fund balance reserve accounts. Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for governmental fund types is limited to exclude amounts represented by noncurrent liabilities. Since they do not affect net current assets, such long- term amounts are not recognized as governmental fund type expenditures or fund liabilities. They are instead reported as liabilities in the General Long- Term Obligation Account Group. All proprietary fimds and pension trust funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" measurement focus. This means that all assets (including fixed assets) and all liabilities (whether current oi' noncurrent) ~;sociated with their activity are included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund equity (net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets. Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against their operations. Depreciation recognized on fixed assets acquired through intergovemmental grants, entitlements, or shared revenues externally restricted to capital acquisitions is allocated to contributed capital, while depreciation on fixed assets acquired with proprietary fund resources is al located to retained earnings. Accumulated delzreciation is reported on the proprietary fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as follows: l:luildings 15-50 years Structures: Water Jeservoir and treatment plant 10-50 years Transrnission and distribution system 10-50 years Fiquipme~ t and vehicles 3-20 years 19 (Continued) 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
Agency Funds_ - Agency rinds are custodial in nature and do not present results of operations or have a measurement focus. The Consolidated Sales Tax Fund accounts for the collection of a two and one-half percent city sales and use tax and the distribution of this tax to the various funds which acccmnt for operations or projects for which the tax was levied. This fund also accounts for the collection and distribution of sales taxes levied by the Bossier l'arish School Board and various municipalities within the parish. The Deferred Compensation Fund accounts for the assets held under the City's Internal Revenue Code Section 457 plan. The Riverboat Gaming Agency Fund accounts for the receipt and distribution of funds r~ceived from the riverboats and paid to other local government agencies under the terms of the agreements with the riverboats. A.CA::QUNT GROUP~ Account groups are used to establish accounting control and accountability for the City's general fixed assets and general long-term obligations. The following are the City's account groups: ~eneral Fixed Assets Acc__Q_u_nt Group - This group of accounts is established to account for all fixed assets of the City, other than those accounted for in the proprietary funds. G.en~ral Long-Term Obligatkon Account Group - This group of accounts is established to account for all long-term obligations of the City except those acccunted for in the proprietary funds. Fixed A~sets a]ld Long-Term Liabilities The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the fixed assets and long-term liabilities asso:iated with a fund are determined by its measurement focus. All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "financial flow" measurement focus. This means that only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. This reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered a measure of "available spendable resources." Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financial sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and ut;es of "available: spendable resources" during a period. Fixed as,;ets used in governmental fund type operations (general fixed assets) are accounted for in the General Fixed Assets Account Group, rather than in governmental funds. Public domain ("infrastructure") general fixed assets consisting of certain improvements including roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting systems are not capitalized alcng with other general fixed assets. No depreciation has been provided on g:neral fixed assets, nor has interest been capitalized. 

18 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
]3nt~mds - Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through aser charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income i; appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. The City's enterprise funds arc the Depzatment of Water and Sewerage, Bossier Medical Center, and Emergency Medical Services. The Department of Water and Sewerage is operated as a self-sustaining utility of the City and is responsible for providing the residents of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana, with water and sewerage treatment. Bossier Medical Center is a municipal health care facility owned and operated by the City of Bossier City, Louisiana. The Bossier Medical Center is governed by a Board of Directors which is appointed by the Mayor and approved by the City Council. The City Council approves and has the right to change the annual operating and capital budgets, if it so desires. '/'he Board administers the daily operations of the hospital within the budgetary and fiscal controls established by the City Council as a self- sustaining entity of the ('ity. The: Emergency Medical Services department is operated as a self-sustaining service c,f the City and is responsible for providing the residents of the City of lqossier City, Louisiana, with emergency medical services. ~!!~._rnal $~o'ice Funds -. Internal service funds are used to account for the financinl; of services provided by one department of the City to othcr departments on a cost-reimbursement basis. The City maintains two internal service funds for medical and workmen's compensation and general insurance coverage. FI D_U_C.IA I~:Y FUN IZ$. 
P_~o_sion Tr0st Funds - The City maintains three retirement funds which are accounted for and reporled as fiduciary funds since capital maintenance is critical. These funds are the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund, the Policemcn's Pension and Relief Fund, and the Bossier Medical Center Pension Fund. 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
Condensed unaudited financial information as of December 31, 1996, is as follows 

l? alance Sheet Data Total assets Total fund balance Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and C~ anges in Fund Balance P, evenues Expenditures Excess expenditures over revenues Fund balance, January 1, 1996 Fund balance, I)ecember 31, 1996 

Bossier Parish Police Jury P.O. Bcx 68 Bossier City, Louisiana 71006 

(A) B~_asis of_ Prc s_eJ 

Total $ 167,251 $ L6~7 25! 
$ 75,386 _ 675 74,711 ._92,540 $ 1_67,251 

City's Share 83,626 _8_3,626 
37,693 338 37,355 ,46,270 83,625 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds or account groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance/retained earnings, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are summarized by type in the financial statements. The following fund types and account groups are used by the City: 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Note s to Combined Financial Statements 
Discretely Presented Component Units 

City Court of Bossier City The City Court of Bossier City (City Court) was created by special legislative act. Its jurisdiction includes the incorporated areaofthe City. The City judge is elected and cannot be removed by City officials. The City Court is fiscally dependent oil the City. The City has the ability to modify or approve its budget which comes from the General Fund. There are certain funds collected by the City Court, tmrsuant to state s,:atute, which are under the control of the City Court. The City Court serves the citizenry of tile City. The financial statements of the City Court included in the accompanying financial statements are as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996. Bossier City Marsbal's Office 

B,)ssier Public Trust Financing Authority 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements December 31. 1996 
Summ_ary oL_Sjgnificant Accounting Policies 

The basic criterion for determining whether a governmental department, agency, institution, commission, public authority, or other governmental organization should be included in a primary government al unit's reporting entity for general purpose financial statements is financial accountability. Financial accountability includes the appointment of a voting majority of the organization's governing body and the ability of the primary government to impose its will on the organization or if there is a financial benefit/burden relatiot~ship. In addition, an organization which is fiscally dependent on the primary govemmeat should be included in its reporting entity. 

Blended Component Unit Metropolitan Planning Commission The Metropolitan Planning Commission (Commission) is responsible for the orderly physical development of the City and the surrounding planning area. The Commission mak,~s recommendations to the City Council and the Parish Police Jury. The Commission consists of nine members with four appointed by both the City and the Bossier Parish Police Jury, and one member is elected by joint action of the governing authorities. Although the Commission is legally separate, the City acts as its fiscal agent and has the ability to modify and approve its budget. Separate financial statements are not issued on the Commission since it has been hislorieally included as a fund ~,ithin the City's financial statements. Since the Commission provides services almost entirely to the City and due to the significance of th,'. fiscal dependency relationship, it has been blended with the City's financial statements. 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF BOSS/ER CITY, LOUISIANA Exhibit 6 Fiduciary Funds Combined Statement c,f Changes in Fund Balances - Pension Trust Funds Year ended December 31, 1996 
Additions: Sales taxes, net Contributions from City:: Fire insurance premiums Employer's contributions City Court fines City liquor licenses Total contributions from City Employees'contributions Investment income: Net depreciation in market valu,~ of investments Interest income Total investment income Total additions Deductions: Pensions and benefits Miscellaneous Total deductions Net increase Fund balances reservecl for employ,~es pension benefits Beginning of year, as previously reported Adjustment to reflect investments at market value Beginning of year, as re,;tated End of year 
See accompanying notes to combin ~d financial statements. 

$ 2,808,288 84,263 686,371 162,738 __ 11,723 __ 945,095 26.371 
(540,360) 1.557.09_~_ __!,016,73_3.3. 4.796.48_7 
4,029,241 __ 43,66O 4,072,901 723,586 
21,571,580 893.80! 22,465,3~0_ $ 23,188,967 



 
CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Combinl:d Statement of Cash Flows - All Proprietary Fund Types and Discretely Presented Component Unit Year ended December 31, 1996 with comparative totals fol year ended December 31, 1995 

Cash flows fiom operating activities: Operating income (loss) Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities Depreciation and amortization Provision for bad debts lncre~tse in accounts receivable lncte*tse in other receivable Decrease (increase) in due from other funds Decrease (increase) in prepaid expense Decrease in inventories Decrease (increase) in other assets Increase (decrease) in aCCounts payable and accrued expenses Increase in accrued vacation Increase (decrease) in due to other limds Increase (decrease) in refundable deposits (Decrease) increase in accrued claims Net cash used by operating activities 
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: Acquisition and construction of capital assets Contributions received for purchase of property and equipment Proceeds received from disposal of capital assets Capital contributed by subdividers and customers Capital contributed by Consolidated Debt Service Fnnd Interest paid on general obligation bonds Contributions for interest on general obligation bonds Principal paid on revenue bond maturities Interest paid on revenue bonds Payment of cash associated with refunding Acquisition of physician practices Payments of note payable Restricted donations received Net cash provided (used) by capital and related flnmlcing activities Cash flows from investing activities: Purchases of investmenL~; Maturities and sales of investments ll~terest received Rental property Other Net cash provided by investing activities Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year Cash and casl'~ equivalents at end oi year Noncash transactions: Acquisition of assets through assumption of note payable Prior peric:d adjustment Deferred gain on bond refunding Amortizafon See accompanying notes to combined financial statemects. 

Enterprise Internal Service Funds 

f.,zdaib il~ 
Component th,it - Bossier public Tr~st 

$ 3,496,523 (319,946) 3,176,577 7,395,183 80,265 4,638,231 5,367,257 (3,835,916) (275,879) (45,8101 16,228 68,155 597,438 34,786 4,000 (186,7041 9.878.3Q~ 
1680.~,~11 (680.951) (2,451,040) 5,814,709 
... (1,190,0001 (1,141,6841 (232,1551 (440,3;i) 1.090.f~_4 
1,215,9~ (17,f~) 1.198.~2 10,755,192 20.431.~7~ $ 3t,186,8~5 

4,638,231 5,367,257 (3,835,9161 (275,879) (165,0001 (68,007) 16,228 68,155 597,438 -- 34,786 -- 4,000 (186,7041 500.4~ 500.440 (6,703) 9.871.606 --- .._.f 680.9~) -- (680.953) (2,451,0401 5,814,709 
m (1,190,000) (I,141,684) (232,155) (440,3~II) 1.090,684 h 1,215,9~ ( 17.6~1 1,198.337 10,748,489 20,844.789 31,593,278 

4,641,311 4,969,814 (6,469,862) 25,909 81,558 64,072 13,881 (552,001) 112,942 (321,7071 39,634 -- 124.4681 10,076.266 
__~654,761) __1654.7611 (4,196,473) 587,441 488 73,996 860,942 (15,3931 15,080 (1,080,0001 (1,506,6411 (209,076) (316,445) __30.flO0 __(_5.756.0811 
1,566,672 783,320 14.029 
2,~64.021 6,029,445 14,815.344 20~844,789 
-- 756,776 164,728 

(120,655) (40,198) 

(8,464,170) 9.901,474 
106,716 



The Honorable George Demenl:, Mayor and Members of the City Council February 28, 1997 
.Current 
Future 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 

The expansion of our water an:l wastewater plants, completion of the Parkway from McDade Street to Hanailton Road, imprcvements along Ihe riverfront, efforts to revitalize old downtown Bossier, and the extension of and widening of major traffic arteries represent projects that are related to a City on the grow. There is nothing in the near future that indicates that this /;rowing trend will not continue. 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION ~ccounting~q_y~.em_and Budgetary ._C_9_n~'ol In developing and evaluating the City's accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, a:;surance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition; and (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe that the City's internal accounting controls ad,~quately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions. The accounting records for general governmental operations are maintained on a modified accrual basis with the reverLues being recorded when measurable and available and expenditures being recorded when the liability is incurred. Accounting records of the City's proprietary funds are maintained on the accrual basis. Budgetary control is maintainc:d at the subclass level by the encumbrance of balances with purchase orders before their release to vendois. Purchase orders which would result in an overrun of a budget allocation, after considering fund surpluses or deficits, are rejected by the accounting system and are not processed until additional funds are available. Monthly budget reports are prepaxed for management's use in controlling and monitoring the approved budget. ()pen encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund balance at December 31, 1996. 



CITT OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the City ~kre financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of the City's expendalzle financial resources and the related liabilities (except those accounted for in proprietary funds) are accounted for through governmental funds. ,~dl governmental funds are accounted for on a spending measurement focus; that is, the measurement focus is upon determination of changes in financial position, rather than upon net income determination. The following are the City's governmental fund types: 

Fire Implovements and Operations, Jail and Municipal Buildings, Streets and Drainage, and Riverboat Gaming. I.~_t_Se~ice Funds - The debt service funds are used to account for the 
..C~pjlal Pr0ject F~B_d_fi - Capital project funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities ~other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds). ['R_R_QPRIE'I ARY F U.~NJ~_ Proprietary f, ands are used to account for the City's ongoing organizations and activities which are similar to those often found in the private sector. All proprietary funds and the pension trust funds are accounted for on a capital maintenance measurement focus; that is, the measurement focus is upon det,~rmiuation of net income. The following are the proprietary funds maintained by the City: 

16 (Continued) 



Date of settlement 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Miscellaneous Statistics December 31, 1996 
Form of government Date established Date of incorporation Area-square miles Miles of streets: Paved Unimproved Poliice protection - number of polio emen and officers Fire protection - number of firemeza and officers Recreation: Parks - number of acres Number of playgrounds Number of picnic areze; Number of street lights Number of water storage tanks Total capacity of water storage tanks Raw water reservoir capacity Municipal water plant: Number of accounts Daily average consumption Employees- classified, appointed, ,~lected, and exempt 
Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 

109 

Table 14 

1843 Mayor-Council 1977 1907 39.96 
190 
181 170 
286 17 8 4,452 3 5,500,000 gallons 5,700,000 gallons 
19,071 8.1 gallons 680 



Our consideration of file internal control structure policies and procedures used in administering fedelal financial assistance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might constitute material weaknesses under standards established by the American Instilute of Certified Public Accountants. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the ii~temal control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncomplian~:e with laws and regulations that would be material in relation to a federal financial assistance progr!tm may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course 6f performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control structftre and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, we noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we have reported to the management of the City in a separate letter dated February 28, 1997. 

February 28, 1997 



For tlhe purpose of this report, we have classified the significant internal control structure policies and procedures used in administering federal financial assistance programs in the following categories: Lkccounting Qontro]fi ~ Revenue/receipts ~ Purchases/disbursements ~ Payroll Administrative Controls .General R_~n_t_s ~ Political activity ~ Davis-Bacon Act ~ Civil rights ~ Cash management ~ Federal financial reports I ~ Allowable costs/cost prini~iples ~ Dmg-Free Workplace Acl ~ Administrative requireme!ats Specific r_~  t_s_ ~ Types of services allowe~L or unallowed ~ Eligibility ~ Reporting ~ Approval for release of funds ~ Environmental certification ~ Accounting for program i~come ~ Monitoring subrecipients ~laims for ad_van__ce__s an___d_ re mbuJs.ements 
During the year ended Dec:ember 31, 1996, the City expended 83.3 percent of its total federal financial assistance under its major f~dera! financial assistance program. We performed tests of controls, as required by OM]3 Circular A-128, to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of internlfl control structure policies and procedures that we considered relevant to preventing or detecting imaterial noncompliance with specific requirements, general requirements, and requirements governing claims for advances and reimbursements that are applicable to the City's major federal financial assistance program, which is identified in the accompanying schedule of federal 15nancial assistance. Our procedures were less in scope than would be necessary to render an' opinion on these internal control structure policies and procedures. Accordingly, we do noi: express such an opinion. 



KPMG Peat Marwick LLP 1900 Commercial Nati )nal Tower 333 ]exas Street Shreveport, LA 71101-."~692 

NDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE USED IN ADMINISTERING 
The Honorable George Dement, M~yor and Members of the City Council City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 
We have audited the general purpos!: financial statements and the combining, individual fund, and account group financial statements and schedules of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana (the "City"), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 1997. We have also audited the compliance of the City with requirements applicable to its major federal financial assistance program and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 1997. We conducted our audits in accord;mce with generally accepted auditing standards; Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-128, Audits' of State and Local Governments. Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finar~cial statements are free of material misstatement and about whether the City complied with laws and regulations, noncompliance with which would be material to a major federal financial assistance program. In planning and performing our audits for the year ended December 31, 1996, we considered the internal control structure of the City in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements of the City and on the compliance of the City, with requirements applicable to major progranls and to report on the internal control structure in accordance with OMB Circular A-128. This report addresses our consideration of internal control structure policies and procedures relevant to compliance with requirements applicable to federal financial assistance prograrrts. We haw: addressed internal control structure policies and procedures relevant to our audit of the financial statements in a separate report dated February 28, 1997. The management of the City is re.,;ponsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits and rekted costs of internal control structure policies and procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide management with reasonable, but nol absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, that 'transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that federal financial assistance programs are managed in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control 



However we noted certain matters !involving the internal control structure and its operation that we have reported to the management o ~ the City of Bossier City, Louisiana, in a separate letter dated February 28, 1997. This report is intended for the information of the City Council, management, State of Louisiana I Leglslatwe Au&tor and the cogmzant agency and other federal agencies. However, this report is a ~ ' . ~ I matter of pubhc record, and ~ts &strlbutJon Is not hm~ted. 

February 28, 1997 
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_CONTROL STRUCTURE BASED ON AN AUDIT OF GENERAL 
The ltonorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements and the combining, individual fund, and account group financial statements and schedules of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana (the "City"), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 1997. 

The uaanagement of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to asses.,; the expected benefits and rela:ed costs of internal control stmcture policies and procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are s~tfeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of general purpose financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of inherent limitations in any intemal control structure, errors o1" irregularities may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any e~ta~uation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate. In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City, for the year ended December 31, 1996, we obtained an understanding of the internal control structure. With respect to the internal control structure, we Obtained an understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures and whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk in order to determine our auditing procedure:; for the propose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control structure. Accordingly, we do not expre,;s such an opinion. 



 

2 



The Honorable George Demer t, Mayor and Members of the City Council February 28, 1997 
Assessed valuations of $203,005,170 represented an increase of 10.2% over the preceding year. Allocations of property tax levy by purpose (tax rate per $1,000 assessed value) for 1996 and 1995 are as follows: 
General Fund - unrestricted General Fund - restricted for F: re and Police Departments 

1_29_~ $ 6,90 19,48 $ 26,38 
1995 7.40 16.45 23.85 Expenditures in the General Fund totaled $22,854,525 in 1996, an increase of 8.4% over 1995. The amount of expendilures in 1996 by general governmental function is shown in the following tabulation: 

General government Solid waste Public safety ~Highways and streets Culture and recreation City Court and Marshal 

996 Amount $ 5,572,647 1,802,337 12,817,480 724,786 1,267,192 ___ 670,08_3 

Percent of Total 24.4% 7.9 56.1 3.2 5.5 2.9 

Increase (Decrease) From 1995 

$ 22.854,525 100.0% $ 1,767,338 Total General Fund expenditures increased due primarily to additional personnel, salary increases, and increases in berefit costs. An 11% increase in public safety expenditures is mainly due to additional personnel and insurance costs. Fund balance in the General Fand was maintained at an adequate level. The General Fund fund balance experienced an inzrease of $74,531 bringing the total fund balance to $3,980,699 at December 31, 1996, which represents 17.4% of 1996 expenditures. 
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PARISH CLERK OF COURT LSA-RS 24:516 provides that this repo~t :~i,~lt be available for public inspection for a period of not less than one year from the date of receipt. Legislative Auditor j 

CITY O;F BOSSIER CYFY, LOUISIANA Supplementary Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance (Single Audit) Decemb~.=r 31, 1996 (With In,dependent Auditors' Report Thereon) 
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The ttonorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Bossier City, Louisiana: We have audited the general purpose financial statements and the combining, individual fund, and accoont group financial statements ~ and schedules of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana (the "City"), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 1997. We have also audited the City's compliance with the requirements governing types of services allowed or unallowed; eligibility; reporting; approval for release of funds; environmental certification; accounting for program income; monitoring subrecipients; and claims for advances and reimbursements that are applicable to its major federal financial assistance program, which is identified in the accompanying schedule of federal financial assistance, for the year ended December 31, 1996. The management of the City is responsible for the City's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance with those requirements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of compliance with those requirements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; Govern ment Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Office of Ma:aagement and Budget (OMB) Circular A-128, Audits of State atut Local Governments. Those slandards and OMB Circular A-128 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the requirements referred to above occl:rred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements. We. believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, the City complied, i~ all material respects, with the requirements governing types of services allowed or unallowed; eligibility; reporting; approval for release of funds; environmental certification; accounting for program income; monitoring subrecipients; and claims for advances and reimbursements that are applicable to its major federal financial assistance program for the year ended Decemb;r 31, 1996. This report is intended for the information of the City Council, management, State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, the cognizant a~ency, and other federal agencies. However, this report is a matter of public record, and its distribution is not linfited. 
February28, 1997 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Table 13 Principal Taxpayers December 31, 1996 
T_axpayel: Type of Busi_n_es~s Horseshoe Entertainment Riverboat Gambling $ Isle of Capri Riverboat Gambling BellSouth Telecommunications Telephone Southwestern Electric Power Company Electric Utility Bossier Plaza Associates, lnc. Pierre Bossier Mall Premier Bank, N.A. Banking Red River Motor Company Auto Sales Louisiana Downs, Inc. Horse Racing Commercial National Bank Banking Hibernia Bank Banking Total amount for ten principal taxpayers Total for remaining taxpayers Total amount for all taxpayers 
Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report 
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1996 Assessed Valuation 8,203,370 7,583,640 5,558,890 5,028,330 2.138.740 2,002,330 1,438,120 1,277,700 1,269,960 1,186,100 35,687,180 $ 203,005,170 

Percentage of Total Assessed Valuation 4.04% 3.74 2.74 2.48 1.05 .99 .71 .63 .62 .58 17.58 100.00% 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Table 11 Demographic: Statistics 

Fiscal 3(ear ~o_~ulat_ion 1987 1988 15'89 15'90 19'91 19'92 1993 19'94 1995 19'96 
N, t3.!~ (1) 
(2) (3) (4) 

Fiscal years ended December 31, 1987 through December 31, 1996 
Median Ag.e_(JJ 26.6 28.0 30.0 30.0 30.0 30.6 30.7 30.7 30.7 29.8 

School Enr011ment(2) 11,748 11,471 11,355 11,374 11,109 11,997 12,188 12,024 12,386 12,772 

Unemployment Rate( 1 ) 11.7% 10.2 9.8 7.2 7.3 7.6 9.8 7.6 7.3 6._99 
State of Louisiana Research and Statistics for 1984-1992, Shreveport, Bossier, and Webster Parish Unemployment and Median Age Information from the Louisiana Office of Statistics for 1993- 1996 Bossier Parish School Board Per Special Census 1990 U.S. Census 

Unaudited - see accompanying ir dependent auditors' report. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Schec ule of Federal Financial Assistance (Single Audit) 5"ear ended December 31, 1996 
Table o._f._(~ntents 
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The Honorable George Dem,mt, Mayor and Members of the City Council February 28, 1997 
are highlights of the activities of the funds and account groups upon the City. Significant financial events and changes in financial reflected. General Governmental Functions The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City and is used to account for all financial resources not accounted for in other funds. The following disclosures of general governmental functions reflect those operating activities recorded in the General Fund. Revenues and other financing sources for general governmental functions totaled $22,980,656 in 1996, an increase of 6.5% over 1995. General property and sales taxes, revenues from sanitation charges, licenses ~nd permits, and intergovernmental, which represent the four major general governmental reverue sources of the City, produced 79.7% of general revenues compared to 73.4% last yeal. The amount of revenues from various sources in 1996 is shown in the following tabulation: 1996 Increase Revenues and Other Percent (Decrease) FinarLci0g SO~,LXg~. Amount 9f Total From 199fi Taxes Licenses and permits Intergovernmental Fines and penalties Racing Commission - Louisiana Downs Video Poker Interest Sanitation charges Miscellaneous Total revenues Transfers in Total revenues and other financing sources 

73,775 0.3 1,632,552 7.1 __ 1.166.682 5.1 20,690,656 90.1 __ 2.290,000 9.9 

2,149,970 201.456 

(44,459) 1,814,965 _(410,00Q) $ 22,980,656 100.0% $ 1,404,965 The category showing the most significant change from 1995 was tax revenues which increased in 1996 resultin~g primarily from increased consumer activity. Receipts from Louisiana Downs, Inc. decreased due to the competition from facilities in neighboring states and alteruative gambling opportunities. Given the City's desire to not rely on gaming revenues for general operating needs, the City began recording video poker receipts in the Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fand in 1996 to fund capital needs. The increase in licenses and permits resulted from increased construction and business related activity attributed primarily to the activity spawned by the riverboats. 



The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council February 28, 1997 
The comprehensive annual fine, ncial report is presented in three sections: introductory, financial, and statistical. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the government's organizational chart, and a list of principal officials. The financial section ineludes the general puq)ose financial statements, the combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules and supplementary data, as well as the auditors' report on the financial statements. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The City provides tile following ~ervices as authorized by its charter: public health and safety, streets, sanitation, water and sewerage, planning and zoning, recreation, and general administrative services. 

ECONO1V[IC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK Daring 1996, the City continued to experience significant growth in new construction. This is evidenced by the consistency ia the number of building permits issued and the revenues derived therefi'om. There have been significant increases in residential construction in North, East, and South Bossier, primarily in new single family dwellings. Expansion in existing businesses and construction of new businesses,.many of which are locating near Pierre Bossier Mall and in North Bossier along the 1-220 by-pass, are evidence of growth and expansion that can be attributed to the improve] economy and the increase in tourist activity, primarily as a result of the advent of riverboat I,aming. Barksdale Air Force Base, which currently employs over 7,000 people in the area, remains as viable and active as it has in the past. New construction and talks of additional missions and mission expansion are indicator:; that the base will remain an integral part of our community. Currently, additional housing units are being constructed on the base. With only the Red River dividirtg the City from the City of Shreveport, the condition of the Shreveport economy directly an5 indirectly has an effect on the City. The economy of the Bossier/Shreveport area again experienced sustained growth during 1996. This growth is evidenced by the increases in retail sales, employment, and residential housing construction. The continuation and completion of the Red River navigation project, the Caddo Bossier Port, and the opening of 1-49 are havirhg a significant impact on the economy and will provide major links for northwest Louisiana with other areas of the state and beyond. The impa~zt of three riverboat gambling pavilions in the City and one in Shreveport have contributed significantly to the area's economy. One of the riverboat casinos is in the process of constructing a 606 room hotel with 25 floors which should be completed in 1997. Sales tax collections for the Cit2i continued to grow and exceeded 1995 collections by $1.3 million due to increased consumer spending, the riverboats, and building activity. 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY BOSSIER CITY, LOLllSlANA 71171 5337 
February 28, 1997 

The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 
In compliance with Section 4.06, paragraph 7 of the City Charter, the comprehensive ammal financial report for the City of Bossier City, Louisiana, for the year ended December 31, 1996, is submitted herewith. This document is the official comprehensive publication of tile City's financial position at Decembe~ 31, 1996, and of the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 1996, for all funds and account groups of the City. This report was prepared by the City's Finance Department. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. The ieport complies in all material respects to the Governmental Accounting Standards Board authoritative promulgations. The notes to the financial statements explain the City's accounting policies, basis of accounting, funds, and accounts used, as well as other significant accounting information. These notes are an integral part of this report. The report includes all entities or organizations that arc required to be included in the City's reporting entity. The basic criterion for determining whether a governmental department, agency, institution, commission, public authority, or other governmental organization should be included in a governmental unit's reporting entity is financial accountability. Financial accountability includes the appointment of a voting majority of tbe organization's governing body and the ability of the primary government to impose its will on the organization or if there is a financial benefit/burden relationship. ]n addition, an organization which is fiscally dependent on the primary government should be included in its reporting entity. 'There are several agencies that provide services to City residents and are included in the financial statements of the Cit'./as discrete component units because they are legally separate from the City. These entities are: Cit~ Court of Bossier City Bossier City Marshal's Office Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority 
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City Council April 2, 1997 Page 2 There is nothing on the horizon to indicate that our growth will not continue. This growth will also necessitate that we carefully monitor our receipts and expenditures so that taxpayers are receiving the laaaximum value for their tax dollars. Our City Council continues to effectively perfi)rm their check and balance function to insure that this happens. 
We look forward to fiscal year 1997 as another year of productive and harmonious partnership with the Council as we continue our efforts to provide the citizens of our growing community with the services and quality of life they deserve. 
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GEORGE DEMENT I~AYOR 

April 2, 1997 

(~)ffh:e xJf tl~e f~I~tEor 

Members of the City Council City of Bossier City, Louisiana 

BOSSIER cI'rY, LOUISIANA 620 BENTON R(JAf POST O~P{CE BOX 2~5~ 

I am pleased to join our Finsnce Director in presenting the City of Bossier City's annual financial report for fiscal year 1996. Last year was another good year for our city. The area economy continues to grow as indicated by the opening of new businesses, expansion of existing, businesses, continued increases in housing starts, and in tourist activity. 
Indicators of this growth are an increase of some $1.3 million in sales tax collections over 1995, and license and permit fees were up some $201,456 over the preceding year. Although we will need to continue to closely monitor Bossier Medical Center's financial performance for the near future, the facility had an excellent year with net income of some $1.4 million after transfi~rring $550,00(I to the City. 
The city will get one more Riverboat in 1997, which will include a hotel, a golf course and retail spaces. This will help with our continuing efforts to develop and revitalize old downtown Bossier. 
The growth along the riverfront, combined with our continued growth in the housing and commercial sectors, necessitates that we continue to aggressively pursue expansions and improvements to our infrastnlcture. To this end the expansions of our water and sewer plants will begin in 1997 and the solution to traffic problems on Traffic Street and Airline Drive will continue to be ag~,ressively pursued. These must remain top priorities if we are to successfully and orderly manage our growth. 
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ANCIAL 
The Honorable George Dement, M~ yor and Members of the City Council City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported herein under Government Auditing Standards. This report is intended for the information of the City Council, management, State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, the cognizant agency, and other federal agencies. However, this report is a matter of public record, and its distribution is not limited. 
February28,1997 
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]b/DEPENDENT WITH THE GENI FEDERAL FI 
The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements and the combining, individual fund, and account group financial statements and schedules of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana (the "City"), as of and for the year endcc December 31, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 1997. We have applied procedures to test the City's compliance with the following requirements applicable to its federal financial a:;sistance programs, which are identified in the schedule of federal financial assistance for the y'.ar ended December 31, 1996: ~ Political activity ~ Davis-Bacon Act ~ Civil rights ~ Cash management ~ Federal financial reports ~ Drug-Free Workplace Act ~ Allowable costs/cost principles ~ Administrative requirements Our procedures were limited to the applicable procedures described in the Office of Management and Budget's Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local Governments. Our procedures were substantially less in scope than an aodit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion on the City's compliance with the requirements listed in the preceding paragraph. Accordingly, we: do not express such an opinion. With respect to the items tested, the results of those procedures disclosed no material instances of noncompliance with the requiremenls listed in the second paragraph of this report. With respect to items not tested, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City had not complied, in all material respects, with those requirements. This report is intended for the information of the City Council, management, State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, the cognizant a.,~ency, and other federal agencies. However, this report is a matte~: of public record, and its distri 3ution is not limited. 
February 28, 1997 10 



INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
~ "~ABLE OF CONTENTS ~ I.ETTERS OF TRANSMITTAL ~ CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT ]~OR EXCELLENCE ~ CITY ORGANIZATION CHART ~ ELECTED OFFICIALS 



KPMG Pea[ Marwick LLP 

February 28, 1!)97 

1900 Commercial Nat onal Tower 333 Texas Street ~-] ',!,ii~, ,~'.~ /,'='~ lQ. ~;2 Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

CONFIDENTIA_L 
The ]Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 

Ol'tlCi ~k FIlE COFY tinder prov report is 7 copy of th ~cf to t! entity ;'n oflici.~b ,r public ;: -' , .,m ,I-~'01J,P-',~3 01 i :, ~ i- : ' :' '<i,d~. AtK'Jl- tot []lq(l, .4 " ~':,: .~;:i.',r,;,priate, at the: ()if c(.; c,; ti~: p:..,li:=.h clerk of court. r~b~ase Dste 

POLI CEMEN'&._PJg_NS I O N FUND 

The City is partially self-insured for medical benefit~ arid liability claims. At the end of 1996, the Insur.'mce Fund reflected an accumulated deficit of approximately $246,000. Prior to 1996, the City made significant progress in eliminating the deficit in the Insurance Fund, however, in 1996, the City experienced a number ~f large, unexpected claims which increased the deficit approximately $165,000 fi'om 1995. We recomnlend the City closely monitor such insurance claims so that appropriate action can be taken by City management to help alleviate the deficit in the Insurance Fund and prevent further deterioration. 



None 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Follow-Up on l'rior Year Findings (Single Audit) ~/ear ended December 31, 1996 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
(P) _Medicare The Bossier Medical Center is paid for the cost of services provided to health insurance program patients and adjustments may sometimes occur when such costs have I:een audited and reported on by the Medicare Intermediary. An estimate of the amounts due to the Intermediary has been included in current liabilities. Amounts by which the Bossier Medical Center's standard billing rates exceed the Medicare reimbursement have reduced operating revenues. 

At December 3 l, 1996, the Bossier Medical Center had receivables from tile Federal Government (Medicare), net of contractual allowances, totaling $2,200,003. Receivables from Blue Cross and commercia/ insurance carriers, net of contractual allowances, totaled $883,495 and $3,333,167, respectively, at December 31, 1996. 

(Q) Reserves 
(R) 
Use of the terra "reserve" in describing governmental fund "Fund Balances" indicates ti:at a portion of the fund balance is not appropriable for expenditure~ or is legally segregated for a specific future use. lnterfund Tr~msaetions Interfund transactions that would be treated as revenues, expenditures or expenses if they involved organizations external to the City, such as routine employer contributions from the General Fund to the pension trust funds, arc accounted for as revenues and expenditures or expenses in the funds involved. Nonrecurring or nonroutine transfers of equity between funds and transfers of residual balances of discontinued funds are treated as residual equity tran,~fers. Residual equity transfers are reported as additions to or deductions from beginning fund balance for governmental funds. For proprietary funds, they are reported as an addition to or deduction from contributed capital. Transactions which constitute reimbursements of a fund for expenditures or expenses initially made from it which are properly applicable lo another fund are recorded as expenditures or expenses (as appropriate) in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of the expenditure or 

25 (Continued) 



None 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Schedu'c of Findings and Questioned Costs (Single Audit) Year ended December 31, 1996 
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]NDEPENDEI~ WFrH SPECIFIC R_EJ ~_DERAL FINANCI) 
The Honorable George Dement, M,'tyor and Members of the City Counci City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 
We have audited the general purpos:= financial statements and the combining, individual fund, and account group financial statements and schedules of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana (the "City"), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 1997. In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the City and with our consideration of the City's control structure used to ~.dminister federal financial assistance programs, as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-128, Audits of State and Local Governments, we selected certain transactions applicable to certain nonmajor federal financial assistance programs for the year ended December 31, 1996. As required by OMB Circular A-128, we have performed auditing procedures to test compliance with the requirements governing types of services allowed or unallowed that are applicable to those transactions. Our procedures were substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion on the City's compliance with these requirement.';. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. With respect to the items tested, the results of those procedures disclosed no material instances of noncompliance with the requirements listed in the preceding paragraph. With respect to items not tested, nothing came to our attentior, that caused us to believe that the City had not complied, in all material respects, with those requirements. This report is intended for the info:mation of the City Council, management, State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, the cognizant agency, and other federal agencies. However, this report is a matter of public record, and its distribution is not limited. 

February 28, 1997 
12 
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George Dement Mayor Charles E. Glover Director of Finance 
Prepared by Department of Finance 
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Liabilities, Contributions, and Retained J~alazillg~. Curcent li~tbilitles (payable from current assets): Accounts payable and accrued expenses Accmed vacation Estimates and retainages payable Refundable deposits Due to other funds Note payable Total current liabilities (payable from current assets) Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets); Accrued interest on revenue bonds Current portion of long-term debt Total current liabilities (payable from restricted assets) Total current liabilities Longqerm debt Total liabilities Fund equity: Contributions; Contributions from municipality Contributions from Federal Revenue Shadng Fund Contributions from Riverboat Gamlng Fund Contributions from Public hnprovement Sales Tax Bond Fund Contributions from Sales Tax Capital Fund Contd)outions from subdividers ~nd customers Contributions from other governmental agencies Contrlbullons from Consolidated Debt Service Fund Contributions from capital additions Contributions from Bond and Interest Sinking Fund Total contributions Retained earnings: Reserved for revenue bond requirements Unrese~'ved Total retained earnings Total fund equity Total liabilities and fund equity 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY. LOUISIANA Enterprise Funds Combining Balance Sheet 
Deparlment of Water and Sewerag~ 293,844 135,375 86,162 285,558 4.000 

Bossier Medical Center 
3,327,008 822,348 
Emergency Medical 

Exhibit E-I. CoI1L 

Servicez 
98,168 64,139 3,719,020 1,021,862 86,162 285,558 4.000 

3,121,582 987,076 71,792 472,262 130,953 440.33l 804.93~ _ 4.149.356 162.307 5.116~L02, 5.223,996 234,506 705.00Q 215,007 --. 485.000 -- 449,513 477,834 -- 1.190,000 1,160.000 939.506 700.007 1.639,513 1.637.833 1.744.44~ ~4.849.363 162.3~ 6.756,115 --6.861.83Q 13,363.15~ 5.225.000 18.588.156 19.950,00Q 15,107.601 ._10,074.363 "162.3~ 25,344.271 _26.811.83Q 
10,238,826 2,082,539 5,083,524 2,777,998 2,146,105 1,678,779 2,445,589 860,942 221,860 421.34/ 37,957.503 

2,922,230 

.- 2.922.230 

1,464 
3.090 

13,161,056 13,288,3 2,082,539 2,132,501 5,083,524 -- 2,777,998 2,147,569 1.678.779 2,846,116 1,597,473 2,448,679 12,619,764 860,942 221,860 421.34~ 40.884.287 
860,942 227.055 431.206 35.723.54[ 975,975 1,035,206 -- 2,011,181 2,184,488 10.638.447 - 30.939.88.~ 590.567 42.168,900 ..~8.536.355 11.614.422 . 31.975.092 590.567 .~A..180.081 40.720.843 49.571.92.~ _~34.897.322 595.121 ..J~..064.368 , 76,444.384 $ 6.. 44,679,526 44,971,68_ 55 . 757,428 110,408,639 103,256,2!4 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 
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C [TY OF BOSSIER CITY. LOUISIANA Special Revenue Fund lail and Municipal Buildings Fund 



Ama~ Cash and cash equivalents Sales ta~: receivable Due from other governmental units 
kiabili~~~ 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Fiduciary Funds Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - All Agency Funds Year ended December 31. 1996 

Accounts payable Sales tax distributions payable Due to other funds: General Fund Sales Tax Bond Sinking and Resern,e Fund Parkway Sales Tax Bond Sinking and Reserve Fund Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund Sale; Tax Capital Improvement Fund Parkway Capital Projects Fund Jail and Municipal Building Fund Fire Improvements and Operations Fund Streets and Drainage Fund Taxes paid under protest Refundable deposits 
&Ls~:ts Investments Liab~Ltka Deferred compensation benefit payable Riverboat GamJllg Assets Cash and cash equivalents Due to other governmental units Tntnl~ All Aoenev Fiind~ /L~.'ts Cash and cash equivalents Investments Sales ta~ receivable Due from other governmental units 

Accounts payable Sales ta~: distributions payable Deferred compensation benefit payable Due to ether funds Due to other governmental units Taxes paid under protest Refundable deposits 
See accompanying notes to combined financial statements 

Balance January 1, 19~0~. Additions Deductions 
$ -- $ =_ 69,_8_j9 $ 39,0?5 2,884 

2,884 
s =___6%819 
$ ~549~g~s 
$ -_= $ -- 
$ 2,$4o,8;~ $ _2 _.2~6_19~_ 6=74 $ 39,075 2,540,855 2,884 

85 

37,710,431 37,492,744 71.548 ~5,274,723 315,583 5,677,593 6,589,984 2,074,979 2,048,235 886,593 1,921,695 2,128,351 2,155,094 840,666 1,396,735 976.402 -21,018.734 552,382 76.326 
_ 688,624 _ 688,624 
_2,000,000 
- 2,000,000 
39,710,431 688,624 37,492,744 . 71.548 
315,583 15,677,593 688,624 21,018,734 2,000,000 552,382 76.326 

Exhibit ~; 

Balanc c December 3 
37,092,450 617,98 37,492,744 141.367 
324,441 5,677,593 6,592,868 2,074,979 2,048,235 886,593 1,921,695 2,128,351 2.155,094 840,666 1,396,735 976.402 21,021,618 68.80"4 .37 0~92A56 
200,706 2007~9_06 

39,092,450 200,706 37,492,744 141.367 767~92_72~767 324,441 15,677,593 200,706 21,021,618 2,000,000 I 68.804 ~-9_3A!~62 

617~98! 3o.2t7 

30.217 552,382 35,~B2 617~981 
3 o~o~2s.Tv3 
3 0~28~773 

617,981 3,028,773 
~85~ 30.217 
552,382 .---~82 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Fiduciary Funds Combining Statem ent of Changes in Fund Balances - Pension Trust Funds Year ended D, ecember 31, 1996 with comp r, rative totals for year ended December 31, 1995 

Investment income: Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments Interest income Total investment income Total additions Deductions: Pensions and benefits Misce]llaneous Total deductions 

Fir,:men's Pen~;ion and ~lJef Fund 
$ 1,921,695 84,263 26,371 
__...1.10.634 
(459,004) __8_79.425 410,421 ._2~9,121 2,0~H,058 15.747 _2~6.805 

Policcmen's Pension and R~Imf~ma 
886,593 
162,7~ __lL_Z23. 

Bossier MedieaiCenter 

660,0~ 
_ _ JLT.4..~6J_ _fff~9_OJ) 
(4,251) _.23_Q.~3_1 _.32,_q..3.~ (67,105) _ 347.037 _279.932 

~d_libit G-3 

.199~ ~9~ 
2,808,288 84,263 686,371 162,738 11.723 945.095 26,371 
(540,360) 1.557.093 ._1~16.733 

2,900,000 3.140 89,342 685,779 176,983 10.829 962.933 47,582 
1,061,973 1,498,13_4 2.560.103_ .A~3.82.,_4~ 939.932 4,7~6.487 6.473.762 1,428,546 ____&2~4~_ 519,637 __!5.568 _ 535,205 4,029,241 __ 43.660 ___4~72.901 3,790,870 __ 76.2tL1. __.3~67.111 Net increase (decrease) 3V2,316 (53,457) 404,727 723,586 2,606,651 Fund balances reserved for employees pension benefits: Beginning of year, as previously repO~led Adjustment to reflect investments at fair value Beginning of year, as restated End of year 

12,1z4,887 4,306,453 5,120,240 21,571,580 20,026,902 ~'8.311 .J2.~3.198 $ t_3~32 15 5~tN4 
See accompanying notes In combined financial statements 

~.211~222 113.144 ~.233.384 893.801 22.465.381 4,3~3# 5~638,111 2_~Ml&8 9~67 (168.172) ~19.858.739 .22,465,38J 



C [TY OF BOSSIt~R CITY. LOI.YlSIANA Fiduciary Funds Combining St ~tement of Plan Net Assets - Pension Trust Funds December 31, 1996 with comparative totals for December 31, 1995 
Filemen's Pension and Asse.t~ Relief Fund Cash and cash equivalents $ 250,675 Investments, at fair value: Certificates of deposit U.S. treasury bonds and U.S. government and agency obligations 11 ,[;59,550 Molrtgage-backed securities 978,280 Mul:ual funds 12,[37.830 Accrued interest receivable Other rcceivables Due from other funds: General Fund Total assets Liability - accounts payable 
27.009 
13,215,514 

Net assets held in trust forpension benefits $ 13,215,51_4 
See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 

Policemen's r'ension and l~_~ef Fund Bossier Medical Center Pension Fund 7,015 385.375 
4,328,327 
4,328,327 
4,335,342 

83 

4,558,860 485.3~ 5,044,216 76,520 132,000 
5.638.111 

Exhibit G-2 

643,065 
20,746,737 978,280 485.3~ 22,210,373 203,529 132.000 23,188,9~ 

1995 775,004 74,979 
19,402,765 1,527,943 493.310 21.498.997 202,106 
4.029 22,480,136 14.755 

.5,638,111 .23,188,967 22,465,38[ 



r~ c~ 

o~ 

82 



CrlY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Internal Service Funds C 3mbining Statement of Cash Flows Year ended December 31, 1996 with comparative totals for year ended December 31, 1995 
Insurance Fund Liability Insurance Fund 

E__xhibit F-3 

Totals " J996 $ (164,473) (155,473) (319,946) 648,580 
Increase in prepaid expense and other Increase in due from other fulds Decrease in due to other funds Increase (decrease) in accrue~ claims ..!69,946 Net cash provided (used) b2l operating activities .__5,473 Net Cash used by capital and related f,nancing activities - interest paid Net increase (decrease) in cash Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yeax Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

5,473 
_~2_9.&0]_ $ _ 234~Z 7_4 

See accompanying notes to combined financial stalements. 

(22,197) (165,000) 330,494 
(22,197) (165,000) .500,440 (28,67O) (216,9~) _(24.468) (12,176) (6,70_3) __378,496 

(12,176) 
.183.815 171,639 

(6,703) 413,116 406,415 

_ (313) 378,183 
. 3~,933 _413,116 



crIY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Internal Service Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings (Deficit) Year ended December 31, 1996 with comparative totals fox' year ended December 31, 1995 

Revenues: Employers' contributions/premiums Employees' contributions Refunds and reimbursements Total revenues Expenses - miscellaneous: Claims Legal fees Employee insurance premiums Other Total expenses Operating income (loss) Nonoperating revenues - interest incc me Net income (loss) 

Insurance Fund 
$ 1,953,674 619,508 _.155,481 2~7~8,663 
2,548,871 292,960 _._~L30__fi5 ~3,136 

Liability Insurance Fund 
1,328,698 19,465 .1,348,163 
859,941 173,424 436,408 . 33,863 1.503.636 

Exhibit F-2 

Totals .1996 1995 
3,282,372 619,508 174,946 4,076,826 
3,408,812 173,424 729,368 85.168 4,396,772 (164,473) (155,473) (319,946) (164,473) (155,473) (319,946) 

3,292,7]6 631,216 246,794 4,170,726 
2,336,677 309,546 774,036 101,887 3,522,146 648,580 2,620 651,200 Retained earnings (deficit) at beginning of year __(81,984) _ 158,968 76,984 (574,216) Retaiined earnings (deficit) at end of year $ _~2_46~,~55) _ 3,495 (242,962) ~_76,984 

See zLccompanying notes to combined financial statements 
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A~ Cash and cash equivalents Accrued interest receivable Prepaid expense Due from other funds: General Fund Water and Sewer Fund Total assets Liabilities and Retained Earnines (Defic 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Internal Service Funds Combining Balance Sheet December 31, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995 
Insurance Fund $ 234,774 

$ 23_n~774 

Liabili~ Insurance Fund 171,639 186.697 161,000 , 4,000 
406,413 186,697 161,000 , 4,000 

Exhibit F- 1 

413,116 3,203 161,297 

Total liabilities- accrued claims $ 481,231 519,841 1,001,072 500,632 Retained earnings (deficit) - unreserv,;d .(.2-~L6~4..,5_7.) 3,49.,5 _/'242.962) 76.984 Total liabilities and retained earnings (defici :) 
See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
The inlemal service funds are used to account for the costs of providing insurar ce coverage for the City. The City has two internal service funds. Insurance Fund This fund is used to account for contributions from City departments and withholdings from employee's payroll used to pay the cosls of providing medical coverage for City employees. Liability Insurance Fund -- This fund is used to account fol contribations from City departments for the payment of workmen's compensation and liability insurance claims. 



 

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP 



Miscelhmeous - other revenues Total revenues Operating expenses: Personal services Supplies Utilities Repairs and maintenance Provision for bad debts Other medical Miscellaneous Depreciation and amo~ization Total expenses 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Enterprise Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings Year ended I-:,eeember 31, 1996 with comparative totals for year ended December 31, 1995 

$ 3,932,956 4,379,529 8 312,4~ _ 615.036 _8 927.521 2,751,237 706,471 578,041 795,391 76,076 1,115,024 1 ..5_.L2.986 _2,535.226 

Bossier Medical ~at~x 
50,593,5~ 50,593,5~ ._434.876 .5L028.410 23,709,176 7,775,165 604,627 216,325 5,276,129 8,285,814 __~023.713 _4_8.82gOA2 Operating income (loss) 1.392.295 _~D.32.A~ Nonoperaling revenues (expenses): Interest income Interest expense Amortization Other, net Loss on sale of investments Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Operating 

847,667 (663,386) (158,470) 322,161 (488,079) (17,602) ..(.183.5201 Income (loss) before operating transfers 1~118,106 1,953,941 transfers out Net income (loss) Amounts charged to contribution accounts - depreciation on contributed assets Retained earnings at beginning of year Retained e~'nings at end of year 
653.410 _~;42.906 $ 1._!~1514,422 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 

.___(.550.000) ._.l.,.4~d. 
_3~)~71.151 _3J~9250,~92 

Emergency Medical Services 
1.602.12"8 1,602,128 44.496 1.646.624 281,592 88,454 25,375 14,986 15.052 152,86"6 101.532 1.679.857 ~33.23~) 16,461 
16.461 
(16,772) 
553 6o6.78fi 590,567 

Totals 
3,932,956 4,379,529 50,593,534 1.602.128 60,508,147 1,094.408 61.602.5~ 27,742,005 8,570,090 1,208,043 1,026,702 5,367,257 8,285,814 1,267,890 4.638.231 ~8.106.032 

3,847,570 4,301,161 53,018,279 1.635.598 62,802,608 773.008 63.575.616 27,341,346 9,173,557 1,145,693 751,260 4,969,814 7,703,166 1,136,824 _._4.~07.353 5.~.~29.013 3.496.5~. 6.746.603 1,186,289 (I,ISIA65) (158,470) (17,602) 
899,982 (I,545,739) (34,525) (1.427.9~) _ (141.248) (2.108.274) 

3,355,275 4,638,329 (550.000) 2.805.27~ .____~50.000) 4,088.329 
-- 653.96~ 685.247 __40.720.843. 35.947.267 44,180,081 40,720,843 



The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council Feb:mary 28, 1997 Page 2 
TRE_ASURY FUND AN__D_!NTEREST INCOME For the first several months of eacl't fiscal year, interest income is allocated to each fund based on an estimate of the funds balance in Ithe pooled cash account. This estimate is used until the general ledger from the preceding year is closed which may be as late as March or April. To ensure a more objective and accurate allocation during this period, we recommend the City rollforward the prior year ending balance on the first da) of the new year and reverse the prior year amount and record the eLdjusted balance on the. day all ~tdjusting entries are recorded. EMERGENCY M_E_DICAL SIr, RVICES 

EMS revenues for in-town insurance and out-of-town calls are currently accounted for on the cash basis. The impact of this cash basis accounting should be monitored to ensure that it does not differ significantly from the accrual basis of accounting and that proper controls over cash receipts are ill place to ensure that the potenl:ial for misuse of funds is limited. 
C~)MMENT$ I~ Cash and Investments -- Th~ City is handling investment income on a cash basis and allocating investment income (discounts/premiums) to the various funds upon receipt. Given this treatment, the allocation of investment income could be impacted by the timing of the receipt of the cash. As long as investments are raaintained in shorter term maturities, this treatment should not differ significantly from the accrual basis. However, this situation should be monitored and if the City begins to consistently invest in longer term investments, a change in policy may be necessary if the impact becomes material. 



 

As~d~ Current assets: Cash and cash equivalents Accounts receivable - customers Less eJIowance for doubtful accounts Accrued interest receivable Other accounts receivable Prepaid expenses Inventories, at cost Total current assets Restricted assets: Cash and cash equivalents Investments, at cost Accrued interest 
Property, plant, and equipment: Land ;~d land improvements Water reserVoir and treatment plant Buildings Transmission and distribution system Equipment Less accumulated depreciation Construction in progress Net property, plant, and equipment Other assets: Cost in excess of acquired net assets, less accumulated amortization Defen~ed bond costs, at cost less amortization Other assets Total other assets Total assets 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Enterprise Funds Combi,fing Balance Sheet December 31, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995 
and S ewe~g~. Bossier Medical Center $ 8,885,805 8,338,985 Services 244.950 

Total 

Exhibit E:I 

17,469,740 12,165,004 655,977 13,978,878 131,306 14,766,161 16,208,266 (78,312,) (3.311.844I (14.7361 (3.404.892) f3.315.65~ 577,~-~5 10.667.034 116.570 11.361.269 12.892.610 77,856 1,954 79,810 129,153 288,821 11,000 -- 299,821 21,899 489,476 -- 489,476 443,666 212.~_2~ 702.853 915.229 931.457 10.042..~2~ 20.209.34~ 363.4~ 30,615.345 26.583.78~ 10,292,373 9o,~i 10.382.5.2,2 3,424,752 100.000 13,717,125 100,000 90.154 13.907.279 
8,266,669 100,000 72.5(2~ 8.439d33 555,258 1,882,986 -- 2,438,244 2,394,774 34,641,072 -- 34,641,072 33,707,808 12,454,542 -- 12,454,542 12,366,749 24,988,037 24,988,037 24,411,079 4.051.06Q 35.493.889 931.3H 40.476.260 39.619.05~ 64,235,427 49,831,417 931,311 114,998,155 112,499,466 (21.492.8~t~9.) (29.419.0781 t537.357) (51.449.324I (47.005.20~ 42,742,538 20,412,339 393,954 63,548,831 65,494,261 1,075.464 108.55~ ~ 1.184.022 1.217.30~ 43.818.0..Q~ 20.520.892 393.954 64.732.853 66.711.562 

436,474 436.4.2.~ 525,275 172,758 18.655 716.688 525,275 609,232 18.655 1.153.162 719,387 715,493 86.81~ 1.521.69Q $ 64,679,526 44,971,685 757,428 1 I L~0 408,639 103,256,214 
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
The erterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises in that the cost of goods and services are recovered primarily through user charges. Accountability over enterprise funds are directed at the periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and net income. The enterprise funds leported in this section are the Department of Water and Sewerage, Bossiex Medical Center, and Emergency Medical Services. 



 

PROPRIETARY AND FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
~ ENTERPRISE FUNDS ~ INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS ~ FIDUCIARY FUNDS 



oe~ ~o3 ~J 

~8ir~ 

~-!~I~ 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be uscd for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those fhanced by proprietary funds and trust funds). Brief descriptions of each fund follow: 

1987 Parkway Sales Tax Bond Fund --This fund is used to account for expenditures associated with the Red River Parkway Construction, Airline Drive widening and utility relocation, Shed Road Phase Ill and Phase III, and Canes Landing projects and is funded by the 1987 Parkway Bond proceeds and interest earned. 1989 l~'arkway Bond Construction Fund -- This fund is used to account for expenditures associated with the Red River Parkway Constru:tion, Airline Drive widening and utility relocation, Shed Road Phase I] and Phase III, and Canes Landing projects and is funded by the 1989 Parkway Bond proceeds and interest earned. Special Project Fund -- This fund is used to account for expenditures associated with the completion of the Red River Parkway and is funded with the refunding of the 1979 Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bond Issue. /'Io more funds will be transferred into this fund. Land Acquisition Fund -- This fund is used to account for special land purchas~:s and sales not associated with bond issue related expenditures. Equipment Replacement Fund -- This fund is used to account for purchases and sales of various equipment not associated with bond issue related expenditures. Riverboat Gaming Capital Projects Fund --This fund is used to account for expenditures associated with downtown development, major park improvements, and other major capital projects and is funded by the initial p~tyments made by the two riverboat casinos and related interest earnings. 



CD'Y OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Exhibit C-2 Debt Service Funds Bond and Interest Sinking Funds Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances Year ended December 31, 1996 with compmative totals for year ended December 31, 1995 

Revenues: Taxes: Sales, net Ad valorem tax and reaUocations 
Interest Miscellaneous other income Total revenues Expenditures - debt service" Principal retirement Advance refunding escrow Interest and fiscal charges Total expenditures Excess (deficiency) of reveiques over 

Parkway Sales Sales Tax Tax Bond Bond Sinking Sinking and and Reserve E~~erv~.Et.u~ Fund_ 1996 1995 
$ 2,074,979 2,048,235 4,123,214 2,074,979 2,048,235 204,001 3).97.2,_ 2,3 LQ..952 
1,215,000 ~67~_-_81 2.082,5_55J_ 

exl)enditures 228,371 Other financing uses - operating transfe.'s out 
Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues over expenditures and otheruses Fund halances at beginning of year Residual equity tnmsfer out 

138,284 2,186.~5_.L9. 
620,000 1.430,238 2.050.238 
136,281 
(98,9A2) (98.0423 

228,371 38,239 3,408,226 2,489,689 
Fund balances at end of year $ 3.~3~6636~59[/_ 
See accompanying notes to combined fittaneial statements. 
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4,123,2~ 342,285 ~1,972 4,497,4L1_ 
1,835,000 

4,128,607 193 4,128,800 437,873 4.566.67_3. 
2,203,389 741,981 2,484,35_~ _ 5A29.72~ 

364,652 (863,053) (98,042) (98,042,) (150,00~) (150.00~) 
266,610 (1,013,053) 5,897,915 8,421,355 (1.510,38._7_) 61,J~_~525 ~897,915 



Asse~ 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Enhibit Debt Service Funds Bond and Interest Sinking Funds Combining Balance Sheet December 31, 1996 with comparative totals for 1995 
Parkway Sales Sales Tax Tax Bond Bond Sinking Sinking and and Reserve Reserve Fu_rtd_ Fund Totals 1996 1995 Cash and cash ~quivalents ~ 3,606,302 2,505,479 6,111,781 5,810,530 Accrued interest Total assets Fungi Balances 

30,29~. 3 636 59_7 
Fund balances - reserved for debt service $ ~636,597. 

22,44~ 25j_5~_928 52,744 87,385 6,164,525 5,897,915 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 



DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
The debt service funds are used to account for file accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. The debt service funds receive a portion of ad valorem and sales taxes paid to the City. 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
(G) Prepaid Items Prepaid items ccnsist of items such as prepaid insurance and other prepaid expenditures. The cost is recorded as an asset at the time such items arc purchased. Tae reserve for prepaid expenditures in governmental fund types is equal to the amount of prepaid expenditures to indicate a portion of the fund balance is not available for future expenditure. t (1t) Inventories Inventories are w.lued at cost (first-in, first-out). Inventories in the General Fund consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an asset at the time individual inventory items are purchased and charged as an expenditure when used. No reserve for inventories is provided since no minimum amounts of inventories are required to be maintained. Inventories in the enterprise funds consist of repair materials, spare parts, drugs, and medical supplies. (1) Refundable Deposits The Department (,f Water and Sewerage of the City of Bossier City reqnires that its first time water and sewer customers or customers not in good standing place; a deposit before service is rendered. If customers maintain the status of good standing for one year, the deposits are returned. These monies are not restricted by law and are generally used by the Department of Water and Sewerage in meeting current operating cash requirements. The Sales Tax Department requires deposits of certain establishments involved in special event~, and before being allowed to sell alcohol. The deposits are used to offset delinquent tax bills or are returned upon the respective activity ceasing. (J) Deferred Revenues Certain licenses ere collected in advance; therefore, the recognition of revenue is deferred until the following year. In addition, certain insignificant grant revenues were collected in excess of allowable expenditures and were thus, deferred. (K) _Qontributions Contributions re, zorded in the Department of Water and Sewerage Fund, the Emergency Medical Services Fund, and the Bossier Medical Center Fund include amounts advanced for aid in constmction and other expenses paid or incurred on behalf of these fimds by the City of Bossier City - General Fund and capital projects funds, various federal and state grants-in-aid of construction, and other contributions in aid of construction primarily from contractors and developers. The contributions or grants-in-aid of construction received do not reduce the cost basis of the respective assets acquired. Such contributions and grants are charged currently with the depreciation of the respective asz;ets. (Continued) 



Cash flows from operating a,:dvi6es: Operadng income (Io~s) Adj u~Cmcr,ts to reconcile opcradng income (loss) to n~1 ca~;h I~'O rider by operating ac6vidcs: Dcpre~ iaUon and eanomzadon provisi,on for bad dcbL~ Increase in accounts n~'eivabl~ Decrease (~) in ot~r n:ceivablc Decre.zse (inc~es~) in prepaid expeme~; Dccr~se (in~~) in mvcrttories Dccr~s~ in other assets Ir~c (~) in ~ccounL~ peyablc and accrued expenses Increase in acc~ed vacation 1 nc~.-~e (decrease) in (lue 1o other funds Increase (decne<~se) in refundable deposit~ Net cash provided by operating acfvi6~ Net cash used by noncapital financing ace vities - operating transfer out 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Enterprise Funds Combining Stoten~nl of Cash F3ows Yem'eeded December 31,1996 with ( omparativ~ totals for yc.ar ended December 31.1995 

Cash flows from capital and related financing acdvi6es: Ac~lalsidon and construction of capltal a~scts C ntribo6oas received for purchase of property proceeds n:ccived from disposal of capRal assets Capital con~boted by subdividers andcustomcrs Capital cortinbuted by Cor,.~-olidat ed Debt Service Fund Interest pald on general obligation bonds Contributions for interest on general obligellon bonds Pdnclpal paid on teventm bond maturities Interest paid on rcvenue bonds Payrc~nt oIP costs e~soclat~~[ with ~funding Acquisition of physician practices Payments of note payable Restricted donadon received Net cash provided (used) by capital and related fln~ncmg activifc~ Cash flows fi~om investing acdvities: Matori6es imcl sales of invcsffncnt~ Interest rcoeived Rental prog,cay Other Net cash provided by investing acfvines Net increase ,(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year Cash and cash equivalents at end of year Nonc~sh transactions: Prior peri~l adjustment 

~.caY~ag~ $ 1,392,295 1,512,986 76,076 (16.4501 (287,922) 120,6:~) (13.485) 25.570 4,~ 

Bossier Medical 
3,023.713 5,276,129 (3,801,537) 10,000 (45,8101 36,907 68,155 529,746 

3,496,523 6,746,603 

--2~ ~...6.~ 7.234.76~ 157.858 9.878.309 
(1,584,164) 5.814,709 
(605,0~) (671,6251 (232,1551 
877.317 
---..~LLLI2 6,084,869 !3.093.3(~ s ~9.t~E~ $ -- Dcf~ffed g~n on bond =funding $ 1.251_~53=~7 Acquisition of cost in Cxce~ of a~luircd a~~ assets through assumption of note payable $ -- Aequisitiorl of fixed assets fl)rough assumpEon of not~ payable $ -- Aequisifion of invcntoty through ~ssumptio n of note payable $ -- Amoai~o~ S 1____58.470 Sc~ accompe~aying notes to combined flnanci~ statements. 
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f680.95~ (677,860) (189,0161 
__+ (585,o~) ---- (470,159) 1440,3;/) (2.173.350.) (189.016~ 322,1;1 16,4~ -+ f17.6021 30455~ 16.461 4.685,020 (14.6971 7.07g.71~ 259.647 11,763,737 244,950 -+ 

4,641,311 4,969,814 (6,469,862) 25,909 110,228 164,072 13,881 1552,0011 112,942 1104,7611 39.634 9.697.77Q 1680.9531 1654.7611 (2,451,040) 5,814.709 14,196,473 587,441 488 73.996 860,942 (15.0801 15,080 (1,080,0001 11,506,641) (2o~.o5;) (316,445) : 30+OOQ 1.090.684 (5.755.76~ 1,215,9~ (17.602~ 1.198.337 10.755,192 20.431.673 
,566,672 783,320 14,029 - 2.364.02[ 5,651,262 J4.780.41[ 20,431,673 . 164,728 
672,645 
12,645 34,525 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Pension Funds - Revenues hy Source and Expenses by Type Fiscal years ended December 31, 1987 through December 31, 1996 
Policemen's Pe_nsion and Relict Fund Revenues bv SOllrce 

Exhibit J-2 

Fiscal Investment Contribution.' Employee Other Yea_r Income From_Cit~l _C_0'0tribujtions Income Tota( 1987 $ 144,940 1988 161,114 198.9 190,638 1990 210,261 199'1 224,878 1992 267,922 1993 275,515 1994 304,387 1995 315,942 1996 32~6 38Q (3) 
Fiscal Ze~: 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 
(1) (2) (3) 

604,274 865,449 888,631 923.334 983,374 1,071,708 1,215,994 1,155,563 1,187,812 L961,054 

37,912 37,233 28,988 21,862 19,371 22,991 18,685 5,047 1.749 

Employer Contribution as a Percentage Annual of Annual Covered Covered Payroll 1,238 788,364 637,347 -- 1,063,796 627,301 -- 1,108,257 487,906 -- 1,155,457 482,195 -- 1,227,623 448,472 -- 1,362,621 436,309 -- 1,510,194 402,178 -- 1,464,997 84,122 -- 1,505,503 29,147 -- 1,387,434 -- 
Exoenses by Type Pensions and ]Benefits Niscellane~ Total $ 660,411 715,818 792,784 816,111 919,216 1,116,934 1,072,358 1,078,458 1,300,950 1L5~428 5=5_46 

5,139 6,255 5,520 5,903 5,808 7,422 10,068 7,664 14,230 12,345 

665,550 722,073 798.304 822,014 925,024 1,124,356 1,082,426 1,086,122 1,315,180 1,440,98[ 

94.81% 137.96 182.13 191.49 219.27 245.63 302.35 1,373.68 4.075.24 

Contributions were made in accordance with actuarially determined contribution requirements beginning January 1, 1985. Includes sales taxes. Investments began being canJed at fair value in 1996, therefore, beginning in 1996 investment income includes change in fair value. Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report 
(Continued) 



,luri~di~tion 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt December 31, 1996 
Net Debt 

Table 8 

Percentage of Debt Applicable City's Share to the City (1) of Deb~ Tota]l direct and overlapping debt - Bossier Parish, Louisiana Bossier Parish School Board $ 10,805,000 67% 
Notes.: (1) Based on 1996 assessed valuation. (2) As of December 31, 1996, there are no general obligation bonds recorded in the financial statements of the City. 
Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Fiscal Year 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 

CITY OF BOSSIER crrY, LOUISIANA Assessed and Estim3ted Actual Value of TaxabLe Property Fiscal years ended December 31, 1987 Ihrough December 31, 1996 
Assessed Value 146,524,880 145,904,130 146,247,190 147,906,800 150,847,340 154,223,650 159,654,090 163,245,851) 184,287,481) 2o3~} 

Estimated Actual Value 1,167,528,924 1,226,328,247 1,260,137,980 1,267,029,620 1,292,083,040 1,340,404,177 1,393,412,567 1,417,208,267 1,582,975,867 1,746,294,018 

Unaudited - see accornpanying independent auditors' report 

Table 4 

Percent of Total Assessed to Estimated Actual Value. 2.55% 1.90 1.61 1.67 1.67 1.51 1.46 1.52 1.64 1.62 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 



ACCOUNT GROUPS 



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Exhibit J-2, Cont. Pension Funds - Revenues by Source and Expenses by Type 
Fund 

Fiscal Investment Contributiors Y~_~_. Inc__~o_me From City 1!)87 $ 334,371 1,312,364 1!)88 404,301 1,335,312 1989 527,833 1,272,853 1990 608,646 1,400,482 1991 678,703 1,504,547 1992 737,256 1,682,340 1993 764,559 1,734,398 1994 823,967 1,863,856 1995 843,232 2,035,175 1996 41 ~4_21 (3) 2,Q3~ 
Fiscal Ye~ 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 
Note~: 

92,946 82,431 78,521 83,283 63,246 63,558 60,516 54,687 45,833 26_~371 

Other Income Total 1,739,681 1,822,044 1,879,207 2.092.411 2,246,496 2.483.154 2,559,473 2,742,510 2,927,380 2,469,121 

Employer Contribution as a Percentage Annual of Annual Covered Covered payroll .Payroll 1,859,683 1,648,934 1,579,709 1.649.522 1,721,195 1,719,978 1,468,092 1,093,808 917,422 547,015 
Pensions and ~._~r efits Miscellaneou_s Total $ 780,611 905,547 1,019,935 1,083,747 1,222,395 1,553,847 1,785,256 1,905,274 1,889,341 2~08~ 0~S8 

4,209 4,530 20,295 36,180 37,095 41,481 48,456 45,669 42,298 .15,747 

784,820 910,077 1,040,230 1,119,927 1,259,490 1,595,328 1,833,712 1,950,943 1,931,639 2,096,805 

70.57% 80.98 80.58 84.90 87.41 97.81 118.14 170.40 221.83 371.53 

(1) Contributions were made in accordance with actuarially determined contribution requirements beginning January 1, 1985. (2) Includes sales taxes. (3) Investments began being c~ried at fair value in 1996, therefore, beginning in 1996 investment income includes change in f~ir value. 
Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 

(Continued) 



C ITY OF BOSSIER CITY. LOUISIANA Special Revenue Fund FiJe Improvements and Operations Fund Sta:ement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Year ended December 31, 1996 with comparative actual figures for the year ended December 31, 1995 

Revenues: Sales tax, net Imerest MiscellaneOus Total revenues Expenditures - capital outlay 

996 
Dudget Actual 
$ 1,237,459 20,000 1,257,459 

1,396,735 26,211 441 1.423.387 

Variance Favorable 12.~lt'avorabl~L~ 
159,276 6,211 441 "-165,928 

Exh b t ~ 

1,327,291 34.845 1,362,136 __-- 35.000 42,14.5_ __ (7.145) 518.~L1.~ Excess of revenues over e ~penditures 1,222,459 1,381,242 158,783 843,317 Other financing use - operating transfer out Excess (deficiency) of rev roues over expenditures and other I: ses Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 
Lk. 180.000) (1.180.000~ 
42,459 201,242 __ 442.561 442.56.1_ $ 485,02_0 643,803 

See accompanying notes to combined fin~ ncial statements. 

68 

(1.150~[!) 158,783 (306,683) 749,24'~ 



Fisca XXg Net Assets Available for Bene[IL~ 

987 988 989 990 991 992 993 994 995 996 

$ 1.783.504 2.125.227 2.435.180 2.768.623 3.071.222 3.309.487 3.737.255 4.116.130 4.306.453 4,335~42 (12) 
1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 

$ 1.722,0(X) 2.092,000 2.492.000 2,603,000 2,852,000 3,470.000 3.965.000 4.434.000 4.449.000 ~,o99,oo8 

Pcnaion Benefit 

C ITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Analysis of Pension Funding Progress Fiscal years ended December 31, 1987 through December 31, 1996 

22,177,845 (I) 22.692,011 (2) 24.871,050 (3) 26.964,259 (4) 31.336.910 (5) 32.389.434 (6) 34,614,943 O) :16,737.989 (8) :18,400,886 (9) _4:L 2~3_8 ( t 0) (13 

Percentage Eu~d 
22.7% 26.2 27.3 28.8 27.9 29.7 29.9 30.3 31.6 3_o .6 

13.497.520 (I) 13.2% 14.809.118 (2) 14.4 15.338.010 (3) 15.9 17.119.123 (4) 16.2 18.692.524 (5) 16.4 19.736.616 (6) 16.8 20.246.836 (7) 18.5 19.745.030 (8) 20.8 20,644.665 (9) 20.9 ~z3~(1o) (13) 2o.3 
2.052.000 (II) 2.222.000 (I) 3.157.000 (2) 3.583.000 13) 3.894.000 (4) 4.447.000 (5) 4.715.000 (6) 5.138.000 (7) 5.377.000 (8) ~5087G00 (9) 

83.9% 94.1 78.9 72.6 73.2 78.0 84.1 86.3 82,7 1__~__.~ 

Unfunded Pension Benefit D~lieation 
$ 17.144,287 16.746,486 18.086,548 19,207,273 22.592,918 22.757.616 24~5~.364 25.888.843 26.255.999 ~039,124 
$ 11,714,016 12,683,891 12,902,830 14,350.500 15.621,302 16,427,129 16,509.581 15.628.900 16,323,457 ~978,853 
$ 330.000 130.000 665,000 980.000 1,042,000 997.000 750.000 904.000 928,000 ~I 2,000) 

Annual Coveted Payroll 
1,859,683 1,648,934 1,579,709 1,649,522 1,721,195 1.719.978 1,468,092 1,093.808 917,422 .5~o15 
637.347 627.301 487.906 482.195 448.472 436.309 402,178 84,122 29.147 
4,855,000 4,940,000 5,351.000 5.386,000 6,226,000 7,222,000 7,525,000 8,829,000 9,553.000 9~610t000 

As of January 1.1988 As of January 1, 1989 AS of January 1,1990 As of January 1.1991 As of January 1.1992 As of January 1.1993 As of Januasy 1,1994 As of January 1, 1995 As of January 1. 1996 As of January 1, 1997 As of January 1,1987 Beginrting in 1996. net assets axe reflected at fair value. The calculation for 1996 represents acclued actuarial liability which differs insignificantly from the pension benefit obligation. 

Exhibit J-I 
Unfunded Pension Benefit Obligation as a Percentage of .C~vered Payroll 

1,837.9% 2,022.0 2,644.5 2,976.1 3,483.2 3,765.0 4.105.0 18,578.8 56.003.9 

]319~ - Analysis of the doll~a" amounts of net assets available for benefits, pension benefit obligation, and unfunded pension benefit obligation in isolation can be misleading. Expressing the net a~sets available for benefits as a percentage of the pension benefit obligation provides one indico,tion of the Plan's funding status on a going co:teem basis. Analysis of this percentage over time indicates whether the Plan is becoming financially stronger or weaken. Generally, the greater this percentage, the soonger the Plan. Trends in unfunded pension benefit obligation and ~,nnual covered payroll are both affected by inflation. Expressing the unfunded pension benefit obligation as a percentage of annual covcn:d payroll approximately adjusts for the effects of infla ion and aids analysis of the Plan's progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Generally, the smaller this peter ntage, the stronger the Plan. However, since no new employees are allowed to enter into the Firemen's and Policemen's Plans, the number of employees will continoe to decline, indicating an increasing burden on the City to provide for pension benefits. Unaud ed - see accompany ng ndependent nod ors' report. 

6.8% 2.6 2.4 8.2 6.7 3.5 9.9 8.0 9.7 
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GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATION ACCOUNT GROUP 
This account group represents a summary of all general obligation debt of the City. 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA General Fixed Assets Account Group Schedule of General Fixed Assets - By Function and Activity December 31. 1996 
Function and ActiviLY Total General government: Administration Munic.ipal building Finance City garage Traffic engineering and safety Purchasing Engineering Personnel Permits City attorney City Council Data processing Community Development 
Public safety: Fire Police 
Highways and streets Rabies control, pest, and vegetation Culture and recreation Civic Center City Court and Marshal: City Court Marshal's office 
CIP (Civic Center) Total general fixed assel.s allocatexl to functions 

$ 214,361 14,554,020 85,971 306,582 4,311,902 83,548 187,308 47,918 160,206 43,790 51,209 681,079 83.158 20.811.0~52 
3,694,882 5.165.953_ 8.860.835 1,751,539 165,756 5,668,466 5,356.624 72,020 171.292 243,~1~ 151.652 $ 43,009,243 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 
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Land and Land lmmovements 
1,682,2~ 2,5~ 753,489 

Buildings and ~,~l~.lCt u res 
12,665,9~ 43,9~ 3,031,595 I I 

2.438.239 15.741.478 
270,015 57358 327.773 
2,691,639 68.440 

5_,526,091 

879,553 1.290.388 2.169.941 
2,436,659 4.905.930 
151.652 25,405,660 

Exhibit H-.3 

Equipment and Vehicles 214,361 205,788 85,971 260,181 526,818 83,548 187,308 47,918 160,206 43,790 51,209 681,079 83.158 2.631.335 
2,545,314 3.817.807 6.363.121 1,751,539 165,756 540,168 382,254 72,020 171.299 243.319 
12,077,492 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Exhibit H- 1 General Fixed Assets Account Group Comparative S :hedules of General Fixed Assets - By Source 

General fixed assets: Land and land improvements Buildings and structures Equipment and ve;hicles 

December 31, 1996 and 1995 

Investment in general fixed assets: Investment, December 31, 1978 Subsequent to December 31, 1978: General obligation bonds Federal Revenue Sharing Sales tax revenues Sales tax revenue bonds Community Development BI ~ck Grant Contributions from other go~ ernmental agencies General Fund Donations 
See accompanying notes to combirted financial statements. 
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.!996 J995 $ 5,526,091 25,405,660 12,077,492 $ 43,009,243 
$ 2,896,020 1,491,879 2,411,744 12,792,771 18,230,125 825,531 2,026,151 1,873,511 

5,526,091 24,847,750 11.179.363 
2,896,020 1,491,879 2,411,744 11,488,384 18,230,125 825,351 1,874,499 1,873,511 ~ 461,691 



Response to Management Letter Col 
Cash and Investments 

aments 

Our investment portfiflio continues to be relatively short-term, therefore any differences in interest income on the accrt al versus cash basis should be immaterial. We will monitor our investment portfolio in the futlire and make changes if deemed appropriate 
P nning Management currently has an informal agreement with an outside vendor to provide an emergency processing site. We will formalize tile agreement and test it if deemed advisable. Accrual of Vacation We will continue our efforts to compile all information as it relates to total dollars le to employees to meet current GASB requirements 



GEORGE DEMENT MAYOR 

"1 "O 

BOSSIER Cl'rY, LOUISIANA 

Mr. Daniel G. Kyle Legislative Auditor P.O. Box 94397 Baton Rouge, LA ?0804-9397 FP, OM: George Dement, M lyor SUBJECT Response to Management Letter Connnents for Report Dated December 31, 1996 
Date: June 12, 1997 olieell|en~s Pension Fiind 

{,e<, ~1 NI~)N ,,,,AI, POST OFFICE [~OX ~.3 ~] BOSSI[R CITy, LA 71171%'~:J ~31~) 74t gSOI 

We will discuss the option of contracting with a brokerage firm for safe "eeping of the certificates with the Police Pension Boarmd. This change is subject to the approval of the Board and will be discussed at the next schedul ~d Board meeting. nsarance Fuud ])efic We will continue to monitor !:he claims throul;hout the year and will take appropriate action to reduce or eliminate the deficit by year end. Management has discussed various options to help resolve this problem itnd we will continue to study the most beneficial and efficient plan lbr all lhe employees of the City. Treasnry Ftlnd and lnteres': Income We have made the interest in::ome allocation in 1997 as recommended. We feel that t ~e 1996 interest income a ocatmn to a funds was mater ally correct and any d fference due to the method of the rollfJrward would be insignificant. Emerg{~ncy M.e.dj3.:al Servie('s Revenues The Finance l)epartment has discussed this matler with tile Fire Chief and appropriate reasonable action to segregat!: these duties will be taken. We will consider continuing the billing process within the EMS department, but actual cash receipts will be sent directly to accotmting to be recorded on ~he general ledger. A copy of the cash receipts will be forwarded to EMS tbr posting to the EMS detail subledger of accounts. The accounting department will then reconcile the general ledger to the EMS detail subledger on a monthly basis. The Finance Department will now request ithat the EMS department forward a listing of amounts billed, collected, and recordell oll a monthly basis~ 



We would like to take this opportuflity to acknowledge the courtesy and assistance extended to us by the personnel of the City during! the course of our audit. This report is intended solely for your information and use as well as management and others within the organization. However, ithis report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. Very truly yours, 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Exhibit J-2 Cont Pension Fund:; - Revenues by Source and Expenses by Type 
Bossier Medical Center_ Pension Fund 

Fiscal Ye~K 1987 1988 1989 1990 19!)1 19!)2 19!)3 19!)4 19!)5 1996 
Fiscal Year 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 19c~2 1993 1994 1995 1996 

Employer Contributions (1) $ 253,200 252,724 (2) 351,000 375,886 44.5,954 503,001 501,264 569,488 639.946 660~Q000 

Investments Income LlJ Total 148,366 195,521 268,294 223,511 243,260 245,983 286,945 318,997 338,960 279. ,932 

401,566 448,245 619,294 599,397 689,214 748,984 788,209 888,485 978,906 93.~ 9,~32 

Annual Covered Payroll 4,855,000 4,940,000 5,351,000 5,386,000 6,226,000 7.222.000 7,525,000 8,829,000 9,553,000 9~6.10,000 
Benefits (1) $ 23,415 41,207 126,285 394,476 254,094 317,866 373,586 580,645 600579 51=9 63"7 

Administrative ..Expenses (1) .Total 7,745 12,007 21,075 13,224 15,263 17,783 17,775 18,669 19,713 15,568 

31,160 53,214 147,360 407,700 269,357 335,649 391,361 599,314 620,292 535,203 

Employer Contribution as a Percentage of Annual Covered Parr011 5.22% 5.12 6.56 6.98 7.20 6.96 6.66 6.45 6.70 6.8_~7_ 

Notes: (1) Information per the trustee's statement of plan assets. (2), The $252,724 contribution sh,)wn for 1988 was made December 28, 1988, but not included in the trustee's statement of plan assets. Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
Sewerage Division - Sewerage Capital Additions and Contingencies Fund: Cash and cash equivalents Accrued in~:erest receivable Total restricted assets applicable to the Sewerage Division Total Department of Water and Sewerage restricted assets 

1996 1995 
$ 1,945,274 17,0_2fi 1,962,310 $ 10,3825,~727 

1,736,849 26,220 .1,763,069 4.875.371 Bossier Medical Center: Revenue Bond Retirement Fund - cash and cash equivalents $ 1,735,213 .1,855,396 Designated for plant and equipment additions and replacements: Cash and cas,h equivalents Certificate of deposit Government agency securities 
Total restricted assets applicable to Bossier Medical Center 

1,689,539 100.000 1,789,532 $ 3,524,752 
608,406 100,000 .1,000,000 1,708,406 

State law allows a maximum of 10% of assessed valuation of bonded debt for any one purpose or 35% of the total assessed value for all purposes. The City assessed property value at December 31, 1996, is $203,005,170. The maximum debt allowable for any one purpose an5 total debt allowable by state law as of December 31, 1996, is $20,300,517 and $71,051,810, respectively. The City currently has no general bonded debt outstanding. Therefore, at December 31, 1996, the City has a debt margin of $71,051,810 available for issuance pursuant to the 35% limitation. Component ]fln_i_t .s The bonds payable of the Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority at November 30, 1996, consist of $17,275,000 Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 1995 Series dated August 1, 1995, with interest at rates ranging from 4.2% to 6.5% and maturing through August 1, 2028. The 1992 Series bonds were refunded by the issuance of $10,080,000 of the 1995B Series bonds having an average interest rate of approximately 5.97%. At November 30, 1996, the Authority has cash and cash equivalents, investments, and accrued interest receivable of $195,679; $17,1"71,637; $174,188; respectively, restricted for repayment of the bonds. 

(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Special Revenue Fund Streets and Drainage Fund Sta'iement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Chan ges in Fund Bahmce - Budget and Actual Year ended December 31, 1996 with comparative actual figures for the year ended December 3 l, 1995 

Revenues: Sales tax, net Interest Total revenues Expenditures - capital outlay 

996 tl. du~ Actual 
$ 946,495 _ ~2_3LOQ~ 978.495 976,402 61.868 1,038,270 

Variance Favorable LUnfavorable_). 
29,907 29.868 59.775 

Exhibitj!:_7 

.19__2 5 
948,066 45~62 993.928 I.L~I~_,.0~ 1.173.182 236.818 ~ZI Exc:ess(deficiency)ofrev(muesover expenditures (431,505) (134,912) 296,593 742,257 Other financing use - operating transfer ot tt (J_05,000) (105.000) (325d)9_Q) Excess (deficiency) of rev(;nues over expenditures and other uses (536,505) (239,912) 296,593 417,257 Fund balance at beginning of year Residual equity transfer in 1,299,161 1,299,161 

Fund balance at end of year $ =762~656 1L059,249 2~6,593 
See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
credited service. Benefits shall cease upon remarriage of the spouse. Surviving minor children shall receive the greater of $200 per month or 10% of average final compensation. If an active member becomes disabled resulting from injury received in the line of duty, he shall xeceive a monthly pension of 60 percent of his average final compensation. If a member becomes disabled because of illness or injury received not in tile line of duty and who has five years of service, he shall receive 75 percent of the. retirement salary to which he would have been entitled. If a disabled member dies while On disability, his surviving spouse shall receive a monthly benefit c~f $200. Deferr&d_ Retirement OptionP_la_n - The FFRS provides for a Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP). Under the DROP, any member who has at least twenty years of credital:le service and who is eligible for a service retirement allowance may elect to deler receipt of these benefits for a period of three years. The monthly retirement benefits that would have been payable had the member elected to cease employraent and receive a service retirement allowance will be paid into the DROP account. Upon termination of employment at the end of the specified period of participation, the monthly benefits that were being paid into the DROP account during the period of participation will begin being paid to the retiree. The participant may dect to receive payment in the form of one lump sum, an annuity based upon the account balance, or any other approved method of payment. Fundii~,~ Source~ - Covered employees are required to contdbute 8 percent of their salaries to tae plan. The City is required to contribute 9 percent of covered employees' salaSes. The employer and employee contribution obligations are established by st ate statute. Total Payroll and Amount Contributed - All Plans - Payroll of City employees covexed by pension plans for 1996 and contributions made by the City were as follows: Amount Payroll Contributed Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund $ Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund BMC Fund Employees' Syslem MPERS FFRS City employees not covered by a pension plan (includes part-time employees) 

547.015 9,610,000 6,488,393 4,157,639 3,429,992 2,560.681 

2,032,329 1,061,054 660,000 226,899 373,348 308,702 
$ 26,793,720 4,662,332 * Does not include overtime not subject to retirement or earnings of DROP participants. (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY. LOUISIANA Note:; to Combined I"inancial Statements 

If an active member is disabled in the line of duty, he shall receive a monthly pension of 60 p~rcent of his average salary. If a member becomes disabled because of illnes.~ or injury not in the line of duty and he has 5 years of service, he shall receive 75 percent of the retirement salary to which he would be entitled. Deferred_ Retirement Option Plan - The MPERS provides for a Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DI~.OP). Under the DROP, any member who has at least twenty years of creditable service and who is eligible for a service retirement allowance may el ect to defer receipt of these benefits for a period of three years. The monthly retirement benefits that would have been payable had the member elected to cease employment and receive a service retirement allowance will be paid into the DROP account. Upon termination of employment at the end of the spee:tfie~'t period ~f pari:~c~pation, the monthky benef:tts "that were being paid in'~o the DROP account during the period of participation will begin being paid to the retiree. ']'he participant may elect to receive payment in the form of one lump sum, an annuity based upon the account balance, or any other approved method of payment. Funding_Sources - Covered employees were required to contribute 8 percent of their salary to the plan until the system is fully funded, at which time the contribution rate :leclined to 7.5 percent. Tiffs occurred as of July 1, 1994. The City is required to contribute 9 percent of covered employees' salaries. The employer and employee contribution obligations are established by state statute. The Fire Fighter's Retirement System of Louisiana ("FFRS") - Covers ,all members of the City's Fire Department not covered under the Firemen's Fund. All new employees of the Fire Department must join this plan. Pension Benefits - Employees with 20 years of service who have attained the age of 50 years, employees with 12 years of service who have attained the age of 55 years, or employees with 25 ),ears of service at any age a~e eligible to receive monthly retirement benefits. These benefits are equal to 3 1/3 percent of the employee's ave:age final compensation multiplied by years of service. Employees covered by the system who leave employment subsequent to reaching the required years of service but prior to attaining the required age are eligible to receive pension l:enefits upon reaching the required age. Death and Disability Benefits - If an active employee is killed in the line of duty, a monthly benefit shall be paid to the member's spouse of two-thirds of the employee's aver~.ge final compensation. If an employee dies from a cause not in the line of duty, the spouse shall be paid a monthly benefit equal to 3% of the deceased member's average final compensation multiplied by his total years of 45 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA No::es to Combined Financial Statements 

If an active member becomes disabled and has at least 10 years of service, hc shall receive a disability benefit of 2 percent of final compensation multiplied by years of service but not less than 30 percent of his final compensation. Upon reaching the earliest normal retirement age, the disability benefit shall bc convei~ed to a r~ormal retirement allowance. If the employee dies while receiving disability bene:~its, his survivors shall be eligible for benefits provided such beneficiaries were his spouse or children at the time he became disabled. 

Fu0~!~!g Sources - Covered employees are required to contribute 5 percent of their salary to the plan. The City is required to contribute 3.75 percent through June 1996 and 3.25 effective July 1996 of covered employees salary. Thc employer and employee contribution obligations are established by state statute. The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana ("MPERS") - Covers all members of the City's Police Department not covered under the Polic~men's Fund. All new employees of the Police Department must join this plan. P~.r!~_n Benefits - Employees are eligible to receive monthly retirement benefits upon reaching age 50 with 20 years of service, upon reaching age 55 with 12 years of servicc:, or upon reaching 25 years of service at any age. These benefits are equal to 3 1/3 percent of the employee's average final compensation multiplied by tLe years of service. Employees covered by the system who leave employment subsequent to reaching the required years of service but prior to attaining the required age are eligible to receive pension benefits upon reaching the required age. 
(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Noles to Combined Financial Statements 
E~9_O~rlg $Qur~,~s - The funding policy of the BMC Fund provides for periodic employer contributions at aetuarially determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to accumulate needed assets to pay benefits when due. Level percentages of employer payroll contribution rates are detemfined using the Frozen Entry Age actuarial funding method. At this time, a supplemental unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $84,214 exists. Contributions f,~r the 1996 plan year totaling $592,000 were made in 1996, and contributions totaling $132,000 are payable at December 31, 1996, in accordance with contributon requirements determined through an actuarial valuation performed at J~nuary 1, 1996. An amount of $644,000 of these contributions represents funding for normal cost. Contributions made by Bossier Medical Center represent 6.5 percent of covered payroll for the year. 

BMC Fund as~;ets are held in pension funding contracts with a life insurance company. MJd_LTIPLE-EMPLOYER COST-SHARING BENEFIT PLANS - _P3dB LJ C EM Administered by he State of Louisiana ~ The Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana ("Employees' System") - Covers substantially all employees of the City not covered by the fire, police, and Bossier Medical Center pension plans. P~tsZon Benefita - Employees are eligible to receive monthly retirement benefits upon reaching age 55 with 30 years and age 60 with 10 years of service. Benefits are equal to 2 p,:rcent of the employee's final compensation multiplied by years of service. For employees with less than 30 years of service, benefits are reduced by 3 percent for each year that the employee is below age 62 at the time of retirement. Ele.;ted officials receive an additional 1/2 of 1 percent for each year of elective service. Benefits cannot exceed 100 percent of the employee's final salary. 
43 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
If a member beccmes disabled while in the performance of his duties, he shall receive pension b, mefits as stated above for normal retirees. Funding Sources - The Policemen's Fund is funded from the following sources, as established by City ordinance: 
~ Twenty perceat of all amounts collected for City Court fines. ~ Ten percent cf all funds collected by the City for taxes, licenses, or permits for tile sale of alcoholic bevelages. ~ Six percent of the salaries of all employees of the Police Department who arc eligible for participation in the Policemen's Plan. ~ Income from investments owned by the Policemen's Plan. ~ Reimbursement by the General Fund for the operating deficit of the prior year, if any. ~ Amounts from the 1982 sales tax levy sufficient to liquidate the unfunded liability over a period not to exceed 30 years. As of December 31, 1996, the Policemeu's Plan membership consisted of Retirees and t)eneficiaries currently receiving benefits 59 DROP members Administered CoNmerciallv ~ Tile Bossier Medical (;enter Employees' Pension Fund ("BMC Fund") - Covers all eligible employees of the Bossier Medical Center. The Bossier Medical Center maintains a separate noncontributory defined benefit pension plan for :.ts employees only. The plan covers substantially all employees who have met th~: length of service requirements. Benefits. - The BMC Fund is a plan sponsored by Bossier Medical Center to provide retiremem benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Benefits vest 100% after five 3ears. Empk)yees who retire at age 65 are entitled to a benefit of 1.2 percent of each year's compensation plus .5 percent of compensation in excess of $10,00D for service after January 1, 1989. The formula is 1 percent of compensation in excess of $10,000 for service prior to 1989, but is based on a five-year average compensation as of 1989. Compensation is defined as total base salary and wages actually paid excluding any additions such as bonuses, overtime, and business expenses. Employees may receive a reduced benefit at or after age 55 if they have ten years of service. 

42 (Continued) 



CIT~f OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Nott:s to Combined Financial Statements 
As of December 31, 1996, the Firemen's Fund membership consisted of: Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 68 DROP members 22 Current employees: Vested 11 Nonvested 11 The Polieeme~ds Pensiop, and Relief Fund ("Polleemen's Fund") - Covers a limited number of men'lbers of the City's Police Department not covered under the Municipal Police l~mployee Retirement System of Louisiana. All policemen employed on or after September 9, 1977, must join the Municipal Police Employee Retirement System of Louisiana Plan. Pensiou_Benefit,~ - Employees with 20 years of service or employees with 18 consecutive years of service and that have reached 65 years of age are eligible for monthly retirement benefits. These benefits shall be two-thirds (2/3) of average final compensati~m, as defined. Benefits can only be paid monthly and employee contributions are forfeited upon termination of an employee without the required length of service. The Policemen's Plan provides for a joint and survivor benefit option. This option gives the ~'ecipient the choice of reducing the amount of retirement drawn and increases amounts paid to survivors upon death. This option is actuarially equivalent to the original service retirement benefit. Benefits paid regardless of option re, mains at two-thirds (2/3) of monthly salary. ]Deferred Retirement Option P!.a_n - The Policemen's Plan provides for a Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP). Under the DROP, any member who has at least twenty years of :reditable service and who is eligible for a service retirement allowance may elect to defer receipt of these benefits for a period of three years. The monthly retiJement benefits that would have been payable had the member elected to cease employment and receive a service retirement allowance will be paid into the DROP account. Upon termination of employment at the end of the specified period of participation, the monthly benefits that were being paid into the DROP account during the period of participation will begin being paid to the retiree. The partMpant may elect to receive payment in the form of no more than two payments pet year in increments of at least $1,000 or an annuity based upon the account balance. Death and Disabilitj~ Benefit~ .- All participants are either retired or under the DROP program. Therefore, if a member dies while receiving a pension and leaves a child or children under seventeen years of age, a widow, or a dependent mother; these survivors should be paid as follows: dependent mother, one hundred dollars p~r month; widow, survivor benefits based upon the election of the p,'u-ticipant; ea:h child under eighteen years of age or who is attending college, one hundred fifty dollars per month, regardless of the number of children. 41 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CrFY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
age of eighteen (18) or until man'ied, whichever is sooner. These amounts paid to the fmnily of the deceased will not exceed two-thirds (2/3) of the member's salary. 

F_u_!l_d_in_g_Sg~rces .- The Plan is funded from the following sources, as established by City ordinance: Proceeds frorr the City's portion of the State of Louisiana 2% Fire Insurance Tax Account. The sale of coademned propeJ'ty owned and used by the Fire Department. Five percent c,f the salaries of all employees of the Fire Department who are eligible for pa;'ticipation in the Firemen's Plan. A matching five percent of employees' salaries paid by the General Fund. Reimbursement by the General Fund for the operating deficit, if any. Income from investments owned by the Firemen's Plan. Amounts from the sales tax levy sufficient to liquidate the unfunded liability over a period not to exceed 30 years. 
(Continued) 



(9) 
CITY OF BOSSIER CITY. LOUISIANA Note; to Combined Financial Statements 

Defined Benefit Pension Plans (A) Descrintion of Plans qhe City, Bossier Medical Center, and the State of Louisiana collectively have six pension plans which provide substantially all full-time employees with retiremenk death, and disability benefits. These plans are: SINGLE EMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS - PUBLI( EMPJ~)YEE R Summa!:y_Qf Significant Acc.oun_ling Po_licies Basis of Accounting -- The three City administered pension plans' financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employer and plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which employees provide sereices to the enl:ity. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan, Method Used to Value Inveslments -- Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term invesqments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. The fair value of real estate investments is based on independent appraisals. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair value. Administered by the City The Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund ("Firemen's Fund") - Covers substantially all raembers of the City's Fire Department employed by the City before January 1, 1980. All firemen employed by the City on or after January 1, 1980, must join tie Firefighter's Retirement System of Louisiana Plan. P~e!asio_B__Benefits - Employees with 20 years of service are eligible to receive monthly retirement benefits. These benefits are equal to two-thirds (2/3) of average final compensation, as defined. The beneficiary receives an additional amount equal to one (1) percent of such salary for each year of service after the member has reached the age of 50 years and has served 20 "years, provided that the maximum benefit shall not exceed seventy-five (75) percent of the salary. Benefits can only be paid out monthly and employee and employer contributions are forfeited upon termination of an employee without the required length of service. 

39 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
The "pension benefit obligation" is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is intended to help users assess the funding status of the plans on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons among employers. The measure is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits and is independent of the funding method used to determine contributions to the plans. The actuarial accrued liability shown below (which differs insignificantly front the pension benefit obligation) was computed as part of an actuarial valuation performed as of January 1, 1997, for the Firemen's and Policemen's Funds and as of January 1, 1996, for the BMC Fund. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valua':ion include (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7.0 percent a year compounded annually for the Firemen's Fund, 6.0 percent annually for the Policemen's Fund, and 7.5 percent for the BMC Fund and (b) projected salary increases of 2.0 percent a year for inflation and from 3.0 to 6.4 percent a year for years of service for the Firemen's and Policemen's Funds, and 4.0 percent a year for the BMC Fund. The net assets available for benefits in the following schedule are valued at fair value and are as of December 31 1996, for the Firemen's and Policemen's Funds and as of December 31, 1c~'95, for the BMC Fund. Total unfunded actuarial accrued liability applicable to the City's employees was as follows: 
Actuarial accrued liability: Retirees and ben~ ficiafies currently receiv ng benefits and terminated employees not yet receivin ~ benefits Current employe~:s: Accumulated employee contribution s Employer-financed vested Employer-financed nonvested 

Firemen's Euod Policemen's F.aad BMC E~* _Zoxal 
$ 39,864,363 21,314,195 701,000 61,879,558 
1,564,350 -- 3,459,000 5,023,350 _~,600.941 927.000 __2~s27.941 Total ac :uarial accrued liabilily 43,254,638 21,314,195 5,087,000 69,655,833 

(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Note s to Combined Financial Statements 
Scheduled bond principal maturities are as follows 

(6) Sales Tax 

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 The~a~2er 
130,000 135,000 140,000 150,000 16,720,000 $ 17.275,000 

The Consolidated Sales Tax Agency Fund accounts for the collection of a two and one-half cent City sales and use tax and the distribution of this tax to other funds of the City. This fund also accounts for the collection and distribution of sales taxes levied by tile Bossier Parish Schocl Board and various municipalities within the parish. For financial reporting purposes, sales taxes are recorded as revenue in the individual funds which account for operations or projects for which the taxes were levied and as approw:d for expenditure by ordinance of the Council. 

In 1987, a half cent sales :ax was approved by the voters. The additional revenue, net of expenses incurred in collecting the tax, is to be used for retirement of principal and payment of interest o~ sales tax bonds issued for the design and construction of a parkway adjacent to tile Red River. The remaining amount, if any, is payable to file Parkway Capital Projects Fund. 
37 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Not.~s to Combined Financial Statements 
Firemen's Policemen's Eu.rd Eu~ BMC Eu_nd * Net assets availabk: for benefits, at cost, which apl:roximates market $ _13.215.514 4.335.342 5.099.000 22.649.856 Uofunc ed actuarial accrue, d liability $ 30,039,124 * This does not irtclude contributions made by Bossier Medical Center of $63,99i made in 1996, but applic~tble to the prior plan year. (D) .A__ctuarially Determined Coil_t__r Madg bution Renuirements and Contributions 

The City's funding policy for it.,; multiple--employer cost-sharing public employce retirement systems provides for contributions to be made by the City and by the individual employees participating in the plans as described in (A) above. 49 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Note:; to Combined Financial Statements 
Changes in the Department of Water and Sewerage retained earnings reserved for debt service and unreserved during the year ended December 31, 1996 and 1995, were as follows: 199~ 1995' Department ot' Water aad Sewerage Fund: Reserved: Balance at beginnirtg of year Transfer from (to) unreserved retained earnings Balance at end of y.~ar Unreserved: Balance al beginning of year, as previously reported Prior period adjustment - understatement of accrued expen ~es Balance at beginning of year, as restated Net income Amounts charged to contribution accounts for depreciation Transferred from (Io) reserves Balance at end of v.~,ar Total retained earnings 

$ 1,149,282 1,086,541 (173,307) 975.975 62,741 1,149,282 
8,393,624 6,711,648 m -- 8,393,624 1,418,106 653,410 173,307 10.638.447 

(109.805) 6,601,843 1,169,900 684,622 (62,741) 8,393,624 $ 11,614,442 9,542,906 Details of restricted assets at December 31, 1996 and 1995, are as follows: 1996 1995 l')epartment of Water and Sewerage: Water Division: Utility Rever ue Bond Funds - 1990, 1992 and 1996 Utility Revenue Serial Bonds Debt Service Fund: Cash ard cash equivalents Accrued interest receivable $ 1,898,848 16,633 1,915,481 Water Capita[ Additions and Contingencies Fund: Cash artd cash equivalents 6,448,251 Accrued interest receivable 56,485 6.504.736 

1,937,676 29,251 1,966,927 
1,128,342 17,033 1,145,375 Tot;tl restricted assets applicable to the Water Division 8,420,217 3,112,302 
(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIBR CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
On November 1, 1995, the City set aside funds totaling $741,981 to advance refund $740,000 of the 1973, 1974, 1975, and 1978 outstanding general obligation bonds. These bonds are considered defeased and the liability has been removed from the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. At December 31, 1996, $525,000 of these bonds are outstanding but considered defeased. In March 1996, the City issued $7,595,000 in Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds with interest rates ranging from 3.5% to 5.1% to advance refund $6,605,000 of outstanding 1990 Utilities Revenue Bonds Series bonds with interest rates ranging from 7.0% to 7.4%. The net proceeds of $7,424,535 (after payment of $170,466 in underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance cots) plus an additional $232,155 of existing funds were used to purchase U.S government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust wi:h an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the 1990 bonds. As a result, at December 31, 1996, $6,605,000 of the 1990 Series bonds are considered t3 be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the Water and Sewer Fund. 

Changes in Bossier Mezlical Center retained earnings reserved for debt service and unreserved during the year ended December 31, 1996 and 1995, were as follows: 1996 1995 Bossier Medical Center Fund: Reserved: Balance at beginning of year Transfer to unrese:ved retained earnings Balance at end of ,rear Unreserved: Balance at beginning of year Net income Transferred from reserved Balance at end of ',,ear Total retained earnings 
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$ 1,035,206 1,035,206 1,035.206 1.035.206 
29,535,945 1,403,941 ,30,939.886 $ .31,975,092 

26,745,681 2,790,264 29,535.945 30,571.151 

(Continued) 



C1T Y OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
The annual requirements, excluding unamortized deferred gain on bond refunding, to amortize all debt outstanding as of December 31, 1996, are as follows: Year Ending December 31 lMncipal Interest Total 1997 1998 1999 2000 2.001-2005 2006-2010 2011-2014 

$ 3,150,000 3,105,000 3,285,000 3,495,000 18,905,000 16,990,000 _6.335.000 $ 5L265,000 

3,394,699 3,173,914 2,976,829 2,768,691 10,481,916 5,207,390 863,276 28.866.715 

6,544,699 6,278,914 6,261,829 6,263,691 29,386,916 22,197,390 7.198.276 
There are a number of limitations and reslrictions contained in the various bond indentures The City is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions. During 1995, the remaining general obligation bonds were paid off and the funds remaining in the debt service fund were distributed through a residual equity transfer to various funds consistent with the original purpose of the bond issue in accordance with the applicable bond ordinance. In addition, proceeds from the City's sales tax revenues, to the extent of current year debt service requirements, have been dedicated for retirement of the Sales Tax Bonds, series 1979, 1987, 1989, 1991 Refunding, 1992 Refunding, and 1993 Refunding. The total sales taxes in 1996 and ad valorem and sales taxes in 1995 dedicated to the Bond and Interest Sinking Funds amounted to $4,123,214 and $4,1 ;'.8,607, respectively (see note 6). In 1987, the Bossier Medical Center (BMC) created an irrevocable trust in an amount sufficient to pay principal and interest on its outstanding 1985 Revenue Bonds. The recording of the in-sabstance defeasance resulted in the removal of the outstanding bonds and the trust assets from the BMC's balance sheet in 1987. The 1985 Revenue Bonds were called on January 1, 1996, at a redemption price of 102% of the principal amount plus accrued interest. The principal amount of the called bonds was $5,225,000. The 1986 and 1987 Series bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been rem3ved from the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. At December 31, 1996, $5,520,000 and $9,850,000 of the 1986 and 1987 bonds, respectively, remain c,utstanding. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
$8,190,000 1991 Revenue Refunding Bonds due in annual installments of S155,000 to $840,000 through 2010; maturing Decemlzer 1 of each year; interest at 6.05% to 6.85%; callable on or after December 1,2001 $11,675,000 1992 Pevenue Refunding Bonds due in annual instalhnents of $130,000 to $1,080,000 through 2012; maturing November 1 of each year; interest at 5.10% to 6.35%; callable on or after November 1, 1997 $6,325,000 1993 Public Improvement Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments of $95,000 to $640,000 through 2010; m~turing December 1 of each year; interest at 3.75% to 5.3%; callable on or after July 1, 1996 
Revenue bonds - applicable to water and sewer operations $9,995,000 1990 Utilities Revenue Serial Bonds due in annual installments of $365,000 to $445,000 through 2000; maturing October 1 of each year; interest at 6.6% to 6.9% $6,695,000 1992 Utilities Revenue Serial Bonds due in annual installments of $245,000 to $560,000 through 2012; maturing October 1 of each year; interest at 4.7% to 6.1% $'7,595,000 1996 Ut!lities Revenue Refunding Bonds due in annual installmen:s of $95,000 to $880,000; maturing October 1 of each year; interest at 3.65% to 5.1%, (net of $1,131,844 of unamortized defen'ed gain on refunding of 1990 Utilities Revenue Bonds) 
Revenue bonds - applicable to Medical Center operations: $10,165,000 1987 Hospital Refunding Serial Bonds due in annual installmenls of $485,000 to $840,000 through 2005, maturing January 1 of each year; interest at 7.0% to 7.85%; callable on or after July 1, 1997 Total revenue bonds 
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$ 4,910,000 
11,205,000 
6,075,000 .34,355,000 
1,615,000 
6,020,000 
6.433.156 14.068,156 
5,710,000 $ 54,133,156 

(Continued) 



(5) Long-Term Debt 
CITY OF BOSSIER CITY. LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

City of_Bossier City (PIrimarv Government) A summary of changes in general long-term obligations follows 
Balance, January 1, 1996 Debt issue.s/additions Debt retirements/defeased Balance, Dcceruber 31, 1996 

Revenue Bonds Accrued Payable - General _~_ tajj~ City Ot~erations $ 479.511 40.078 
$ 519,589 

36,190,000 36,669,511 -- 40,078 (1.8355,~0~) (1.835.000/ 
The following is a summary of bond transactions (all revenue bonds) for the year ended December 31, 1996: Bonds payable at January 1, 1996 New Issue: Bonds Refunded Debt retired - serial bonds Gain on revenue bcnd refunding Amortization of gain on refunding Bonds payable at December 31, 1996 

$ 57,300,000 7,595,000 (6,605,000) (3,025,000) (1,251,537) 119 693 $ 54.133,156 In addition to $3,025,000 of bonds retired, the City paid $3,439,503 in interest Bonds payable at December 31, 1996, are comprised of the following issues Rewmue bonds - applicable to general city operations: $6,500,000 1979 Public Improvement Sales Tax Serial Bonds due in annual installments of $350,000 to $500,000 through Dccembe, 1,2003; interest at 6.1% to 6.25% $1,300,000 1987 Public Improvement Sales Tax Serial Bonds due in annual installments of $305,000 through 1997; maturing November 1 of each year; interest at 12% $10,000,000 1989 ]?ublic Improvement Sales Tax Serial Bonds due in annual installments of $240,000 to $875,000 through 2014; mataring November 1 of each year; interest at 6.8% to 12.0%; callable on or after November 1, 1999 

$ 2,935,000 
305,000 
8,925,000 
(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
A summary of proprietary fund types property, plant, and equipment at December 3 1996, follows: Department of Water and Sewerage: Land Water reservoir and treatment plant Transnfission and distribution system Eqnipment Construction in progress Less accumulated depreciation Total Department of Water and Sewerage Bossier Medical Center: Land and land improvements Buildings Fixed equipment Major movable equipment Minor equipment Construction in progress Less accumulated depreciation Total ~;ossier Medical Center Emergency Medical S,ervices - equipment Less accumulated depreciation Total Emergency Medical Services Total all proprietary fund types 

$ 555,258 34,641,072 24,988,037 4,051,060 1.075.464 65,310,891 . (21,492.889) 43,818,002 
1,882,986 12,454,542 12,577,166 21,873,823 1,042,900 108,558 49,939,975 ..(29,419,07~) 20520.897 931,311 (537,352) 393,954_ 

Included in construction in progress for the enterprise funds are the following major projects as of December 31, 1996: ~attment of W~ter and Scw_~zr_a~ Water plant e ~pansion Shed Road sewer line expansion and other 
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$ 625,361 450,103 
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(3) 
CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

Ad Val_orem Property q'axes The City levies taxes on real and business personal property located within its boundaries. Property taxes are levied by the City on property values assessed by the Bossier Parish Tax Assessor and approved by the State of Louisiana Tax Commission. Total assessed value was $203,005,17,3 and $184,287,480 in 1996 and 1995, respectively. Property taxes are recorded as receivables and revenues in the year assessed. The General Fund property tax receivable at December 31, 1996 and 1995, is shown net of an allowance for uncollectible taxes as of each year end of $65,000. The distribution of the City's levy (tax rate per $1,000 assessed value:) was as follows for 1996 and 1995: Levy 1996 !995 General Fund -. unrestrieted $ 6.90 General Fund - restricted for Fire and Police Departments 19.48 $ 26.38 7.40 16.45 23.85 A revaluation of all properly is required to be completed no less than every 4 years. A rewfluation was completed for the tax roll as of January 1, 1996, (4) Fixed Ass_ et~,~ A sumrnary of changes in ~eneral fixed assets is as follows Balance lanuary 1, 1996 Additions_ Land and land improvements $ 5,526,091 Buildings and structures 24,847,750 Equipment and vehicles .] 1,179,363. S .4 t,553,204_ 
557,910 1,102,91~ 1,660,820 

Balance December 31 Retirements 199~6 

(204,78~_) (204,781) 
5,526,091 25,405,660 12,077,492 43,009,243 

(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Not,:s to Combiucd Financial Statements 
The City's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the City at December 31, 1996. Category I includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments with securities held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the City's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments with securities held by the counterparty, or by it~ trust department or agent, but not in the City's name. 

__1_ _2__2 .-,3- Carrying t~acu_na Fair V~lu~ U.S. government and U.S. government agency securities $ 52~32_2,9_3_6- -- -- 52,322,936 52,422,449 Mortgage-backed securities in Firemcn's Pension and Relief Fund $ 978,280 -- -- 978,280 978,280 = Mutual Fuad in Bossier Medical Center Pensior Fund Life Insurance Contract ir Deferred Compensation Fund 
Total deposits Total caah, cash eq Ava- lents, and invest r~ents, including restrict ~d cash and investn ents The pension trust funds own approximalely 1 institutions and 39.1 percent of the U.S. securities. (?omponent Units 

485,356 485,356 
3.028~Z3. 56,815,345 46.7122,9_0 

3.028.773 56,914,858 46.712.290 
103.627.148 4 percent of the City's deposits in financial government and U.S. government agency 

All deposits of the component units are held by area financial institutions. At the respective year ends, all depo;its are insured or collateralized with securities held in the component unit's name by its agent (the trust department of a bank other than the pledging bank). The investments of the Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority at November 30, 1996, consist primarily of mortgage-backed securities and investment agreements which are considered category 1 investments. The securities have a market wdue of $17,418,936 at November 30, 1996. 
28 (Continued) 



(2) 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
(V) postretirement Benefits The City provides certain postretirement benefits to its employees as described in note 13. (W) ~eLf-~In_suranee l~laims The City is self-insured for medical benefits and workmen's compensation coverage. Self-insured claims are recorded in the City's Internal Service funds in a~.cordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Namber 10. Incurred but not reported claims are recorded as liabilities in the Insurance Fund and Liability Insurance Fund. An estimate for these claims is provided by a third party administrator based on historical experience. Cash and Investmen City of Bossier City Primary G.Qv r me~n._m_gn~ All deposits of the City are held by area financial institutions. At December 31, 1996, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $46,712,290, and the bank balance was $48,715,432. This difference is due to the outstanding checks at December 31, 1996. The City maintains a pooled cash and investments account for all funds of the City except the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund, the Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund, Bossier Medical Center Fund, and the Bossier Medical Center Pension Fund. Each fund's equity in pooled cash and investments is presented as "Cash and Cash Equivalents" on the combined balance sheet. Interest income is allocated to each respective individual land monthly based on each fund's average daily cash balance. 

State statutes authorize the City to invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, government agencies' securities, certificates and time certificates of deposit of state banks organized undex the laws of Louisiana and national banks having their principal office in the State ot Louisiana, or mutual or trust fund institutions which have underlying investmenls consisting solely of and limited to securities of the United States government or its agencies. In addition, the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund, the Policemen's Pens!on and Relief Fund, and the Bossier Medical Center Pension Fund may invest in bonds of the State of Louisiana or of the City of Bossier City, During 1996, the City invested in certificates of deposit, U.S. government and U.S. government agency ~ecurities, and mortgage-backed securities and mutual funds backed by government agency securities. The funds of the Deferred Compensation Fund are invested in a life insurance contract. 
27 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance Year ended December 31, 1996 
(1) ~.enera] The accompanying schedule of federal financial assistance presents the activity of all federal financial assistance prog:ams of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana (the "City"). The City's reporting entity is defined in note ] to the City's general purpose financial statements. Federal financial assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal financial assislance passed through other government agencies, are included on the schedule. (2) JBasis of_._Account.ing The accompanying schedule of federal financial assistance is presented using the modified accrual basis of accoun'ting, which is described in note l(c) to the City's general purpose financial statem~mts. (3) 

(4) 

RelalionshiD to GeneraliPuroose Financial Statement~ The balance of intergove~mental revenues of the State and Federal Grant Fund at December 31, 1996, differs from the b~dance of grant revenues accrual basis per the accompanying schedule its follows: Accrual basis revenu~.s - Special Revenue State and Federal Grant Fugd Federal grant revenues recorded in the General Fund: Youth Gang Prev6ntion Street Sales Disruption City matching contributions in State and Federal Grant Fund State grant revenues Jecorded in State and Federal Grant Fund Total Relationshin |o Fed~rn Financial _R_eA~or t s 

$ 956,894 35,416 7,199 (14,751) (7,890) $ 976,868 
Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with the amounts reported in the related federal financial f~ports. 



(7) 

(8) 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Not~s to Combined Financial Statements 

The cost associaled with collecting and distributing the sales tax is funded by the City and the Bossier Parish S=hool Board. The two entities fund the sales tax departmental expenditures on a p:'o rata basis. The various municipalities are charged a 1% commission on sales tax collected and distributed. The amounts recorded as sales tax revenue in the various funds are net of operating expenses of the sales tax department and includes other miscellaneous revenue related to the operation of the department and the collection of the tax. ns - Depar_tm_ent of Water and Sewerage The City Charter, which became effective July 1, 1977, authorized annual transfers from the Department of Water and Sewerage operating accounts of an amount equal to debt service on general obligation bonds issued for water and sewerage purposes to the Bond and Interest Si~ king Funds. However, the transfer to ~he Bond and Interest Sinking Funds for debt service on general obligation bonds issued for water and sewerage purposes was not made because, in ttle opinion of the City attorney, the Charter provisions are in conflict with previous contractual obligations arising from issuance of general obligation and water revenue refunding bonds, and the transfer may not be required. These particular bonds were advance refunded in 1995 and no payments were made in 1996. Contributed Cauita Changes in contributed c~pital during the year ended December 31, 1996, were as follows Department of Bossier Emergency Water and Medical Medical b~.w_er ag.e. C~nt~t Servic~s .T_oLa.! Balances at January 1, 1996 $ 32,796,204 2,922,230 Contritmtions Amounts charged to contribution accoun for depreciation 
5,814,709 
_L653~4.10) Balances at December31, 1996 $ 35~_9__57~50_3 

5,107 35,723,541 -- 5.814,709 
(553) (653.963) 

2,922,230 4,554_ 40,884,287 
(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
B. The City implemenled GASB No. 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants a~ut Other Financial Assistance. This standard required employer governments recognlze revenue and expenditures/expenses for on-behalf payments for fringe benefits and salaries. A complete explanation of the reporting implications of this new standard is referred in note 13. C. In anticipation of the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 25 in 1997, investments held by the Pension Trust Funds which were previously recorded at cost are now reflected at fair value. The comparable amounts for 1995 have been restated. This change resulted in a decrease for 1996 and an increase for 1995 in investment income and net increase (decrease) in net assets available for plan belaefits of $542,405 and $1,061,973, respectively. The beginning balance of the effected funds have been restated as follows December 31, December 31 1995 1994 Balance at December 31, 1995 and 1994, as previously reported $ 21,571,580 20,026,902 Restatement to reflecl investments at fair value Balance at December 31, 1995 and 1994. as restated 
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_ 893,801 
$ 22,465,381 

(168.1720 



CITY OF BOSSIa~R CITY, LOUISIANA Special Revenue Fund Civic Center Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Year ended December 31, 1996 with comparative actual figures for year ended December 31, 1995 

Revenues: lntergovemmental - state and parish shared revenues l~'.ental fees Interest Miscellaneous Total revenues Expenditures: Culture and recreation: Salaries, fringe benefits, and payroll taxes Insurance Professional services Utilities Office and operating supplies Administrative expenses Travel and training Maintenancx; Other Capital outlay Total expenditttres Excess of revenues over expenditures Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 

Budget Actual 
525,000 205,000 12,500 ~ 21.000 763.500 
226,273 12,000 3,000 73,000 44,900 10,000 4,000 20,550 22,500 7L00~ _~_91.223 

525,000 200,152 45,645 15.049 785.846 
213,856 10,753 3,000 87,515 32,202 4,122 1,743 24.462 22,882 207.318 607.853 272,277 177,993 901.806 901.806 $ I 174 083 1~O079,799 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 

67 

Variance Favorable f_UnfavorabLe,) 
(4,848) 33,145 _ (5.951) 22.346 
12,417 1,247 (14,515) 12,698 5,878 2,257 (3,912) (382) (132.318) (116.630) (94,284) 

L~Ks 
525,000 200,425 38,814 18.74Q 782.97~ 
193,968 8,966 2,500 86,702 28,121 5,633 2,089 22,698 21,898 65.006 437.58[ 345,398 ~56.408 



CIFY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Special Revenue Fund Met~'opolitan Planning Commission Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Chang,~s in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual Year ended December 31, 1996 with comparatiw: actual figures for year ended December 31, 1995 

Revenues'. lntergovernmental - Bossier Parish Police Jury Interest Miscellaneous - zoning permits Total revenues Expenditures: General government - administration: Salaries, fringe benefits, and payroll taxes ,Car allowances Advertising 'Office and operating supplies Insurance Telephone Travel/seminars Professional services Other Total expenditures Excess of expenditures ovel revenues 

~xtd.gca 
$ 34,400 _ 18.790 

Other financing som'ces - operating transfeJ in Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources over expenditures Fund balance at beginning of year Fund balance at end of year 

94,480 3,600 1,200 1,500 3,060 100 300 400 _ 15Q 194_.79~ (51,600) _ fi.l...6~ 
_ 40.80~ $ _ 40,805 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 

Actual 
34,700 1,755 25.750 
100,934 3,600 844 2,287 2,777 112 571 400 3.543 (52,863) 51.60_Q 
(1,2631 40.805 

3,/al~ ante Favorable fl2nfavorable) 
3OO 1,755 _ 6.960 9.015 
(6,454) 356 (787) 283 (12) (271) (3.39"3) _(10.278/ (1,2631 
(1,2631 
__(]~63) 

Exhibit B-3_ 

A~ual 34,400 1,850 24.154 60.404 
93,889 3,600 598 1,537 2,627 136 433 57~ (42,991 ) ~Q 
8,009 32.796 40,805 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

State and Federal Grant --. This fund accounts for the receipt aud disbur,:ement of funds received under the Community Development Block Grant and other grant programs. 

Civic Center --- This fund accounts for the revenues received artd operati:ag expenses incurred in the operations of the City's Civic Center Compl,~x. 
Jail and Municipal Buildings -- This fund accounts for the revenues receiveA and the operating expenses incurred to operate and maintain the City Jail in accordance with Federally Mandated Standards and to operate and maintain City buildings. Streets and Drainage -- This fund and the operating expenses incurred in and drainage. accounts for the revenues received maintaining and upgrading streets 
Riverboat Gaming --- This fund accounts for the monthly payments made by the riverboats of the City's percentage of their monthly revenues and am,3unts received trom video poker. The funds will be used for capilal and other undetermined projects. 



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA ]~xhibit A-2. Cont. General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis 
996 

Budeel~ Expenditures: Cun'ent: General government: Administration $ 220,772 Municipal building 691,047 Finance 463,344 City garage 475,053 Traffic engineering and safety 594,440 Purchasing 272,315 Engineering 488,398 Personnel 137,401 Permits and inspections 341,733 City attorney 205,308 Public works 191,969 City Council 124,658 Community development 249,257 Animal control 221,023 Information sen~'ices 216,515 Herbieidc 126,817 Payments; to other governmental agencies 538.2Pa.Q 5.558.3.3._0.. ~3olid Waste Public safety Fire Police 
]Highways and streets Culture and recreation City Court and Marshal: City Court Marshal's office Total expenditures Excess of expenditures over revenues 

Actual on a Budgetary 
227,839 732,967 481,138 477,542 652,346 288,274 503,733 131,778 340,490 192,820 259,369 120,196 223,993 223,646 202,702 140,221 499,197 5.698.251 1,819,093 1,802,337 

4,754,735 _ 6.776.1fi2, _k1.530,8_85( 681,827 1,208,169 342,038 313.8,3_1. 655.869 2J.454.1_7.,~ 

5,112,757 6.820.,9_0A 11.933_6..6_1. 724,786 1,267,192 339,091 .. 315.376 654.46_7. 22.080~ 

Variance Favorable (Unfavorab!~) 
(7,067) (41,920) (17,794) (2,489) (57,906) (15,959) (15,335) 5,623 1,243 12,488 (67,400) 4,462 25,264 (2,623) 13,813 (13,404) 39.083 (139.92,_1.) 16,756 (358,022) (44.752) (402.774) (42,959) (59,023) 2,947 (1,545] 1,402 (626.519) 

Actual on a Budgetary Basis 
221,438 744,016 475,705 460,092 564,877 270,954 448,054 101,690 308,186 187,786 198,312 122,894 239,949 210,329 252,500 117,512 565.067 _5,489.361 1,668,662 
4,435,034 6.341.158 10.776.192 663,860 1,227,579 301,440 292.433 593.873 20.419.527 (2,837,066) (2,163,869) 673,197 (2,211,496) 

2,290,000 (51.6.0_03 _2..238.40~ Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses (598,666) Fund balance at beginning of year 3.906.1 fz.8. Fund balance at end of yeas- $ 3,307,5_02 See accompanying notes to combined finandal statements. 63 

2,290,000 (51,.6_0Q) 2.2384.,.4_0.0 
74,531 3.906A.~ 673,197 673~197 

2,700,000 (51.000) 2.649.000 
437,504 . 3.468.664 _~3906,168 



cr['Y OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA General Fund St~ tement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis 

Revenues: Taxes: Sales, net Ad valorem Utility Telephone Franchise: Cable television Chain store Taxi 
Licenses and pelmits 

Year ended December 31, 1996 with comparative actual figures fur year ended December 31, 1995 

Intergovemmental: Grants State and palish revenues: Cigarette tax Beer tax Special funds from State of Louisiana 
Fines and penalties Racing Commission - Louisiana Downs Video poker Interest Sanitation charges Miseellaneous: Payment in lieu of taxes - Federal Housing Anthority Parks and recreation Engineering fees Enterprise funds and Civic Center Fund pro rata share of general and administrative expenses t'olice Department revenues Other income 

dga~g~t 
5,635,800 5,098,809 850,000 160,000 306,000 48,000 2.500 12,101..19_9. 

996 Actual on a Budgetary Ea~. 
6,586,555 5,316,515 916,230 175.170 318,687 51,285 __L25~ 13.368.192 

Variance Favorable (Unfavorable) 
950,755 217,706 66,230 15.170 12,687 3,285 1,25o 1.267,0~. 

Exhibit A-2 

Actual oa a Budgetary 
5,456,420 4,387,805 843,199 163.338 318,687 47,835 __ 93~ _3_1,218.222 1.628.000 1.978.433 350,433 1,776,977 

120,000 236,000 84,000 __165,00Q 605,09~ 800,000 600,000 50,0~" 1.632.000 
47,000 400,000 50.000 
284,000 160,000 260,000 1.201.00_Q 

125,604 235,413 97,861 169 3~5_~ 62_L232 681,889 457,424 73,7~ 1,632,552 
48,928 241,907 59.975 
269,993 172,720 _ 302,~125_ 1,09~u32~ 

5,604 (587) 13,861 4,35_4 23,2~,2 (118,111) (142,576) 23,775 552 
1,928 (158,093) 9.975 
(14,007) 12,720 42.805 (104.672) 

115,025 235,413 69,955 1._._L32321 ~52,770 800,191 578,126 403,699 56,583 1.610.322 
43,963 379,231 41.396 
240,956 149,053 356.542 1.211.1&l. Tot~ revenues ]8.617.109_ 19.916,J~2..~ 1.299.716 18.208,031 
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GENERAL FUND 
The Gcmeral Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 



(B) 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
In addition to the employers' contributions above, during 1996, the employees contributed $26,371 to the Firemen's Fund which represents 5.0% of covered payroll. The estimated annual contributions for 1996, as actuarially determined at January 1, 1996, were calculated to be approximately $1,977,970, $1,061,054, and $660,000 tor the Firemen's Fund, Policemen's Fund, and BMC Fund, respectively. Of these amounts, $134,175, and $637,000 were to pay normal costs ot' the Firemen's Fund and BMC Fund, respectively, (24.5%, and 6.6%, respectively, of covered payroll) and $1,843,795, $1,061,054, and $23,000 were to pay actual benefits and amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued liability for the Firemen's Fund, Policemen's Fund, and BMC Fund, respectively, (337.0% and 0.2% of covered payroll, for the Firemen's Fund and BMC Fund, respectively). The City's contribution to the Ernt~loyees' System, MPERS, and FFRS for 1996 represent appro):imately 17.0%, 3.9%, and 4.9%, respectively, of tile total employer contrilzutions to the respective plans for the plan years ended June 30, 1996. ~ecurities Included in Public Emolovee Retirement System Assets Firemen's Fund: U.S. government and agency obligations U.S. government agency mortgage-backed pool 
Policemen's Fund: U.S. Treasury Bonds BMC Fund: U.S. Treasur~ Bonds and U.S. government and agency obligations Mutual funds 

(C) ]~nding...~qlatus aad Pr0gr~s.s 

$ 11,859,550 978.280 $ 12,837,830 
$ 4,328,327 
$ 4,558,860 485356 $ 5,044,216 

Effective with the latest actuarial valuations, most of the City's plan actuaries began the process of implementing the latest Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements (GASB) Nos. 25 and 27, even though the City did not elect early implementation of these statements for 1996. As a result, all valuations did not disclose pension benefit obligation but instead disclosed actuarial accrued liability. In the case of the City's three pension trust funds, based on comparisons with prior year calculations, the actuarial accrued liability does not differ significantly from the pensioa benefit obligation. Therefore, in the case of the following disclosures, for both the multi-employer and single employer plans, for 1996, the actuarial accrued liability was used in place of the pension benefit obligation. The differences fi'om prior years calculations are not significant. The City expects to implement GASB 25 and GASB 27 during 1997. 47 (Continued) 



 

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND AND ACCOUNT GROUP STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULFS 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Note,'; to Combined Financial Statements 
(L) Vacation and Sick Leave City employees ~tre granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. The maximum allowable accumulation of vacation and sick leave is up to 30 days and 100 day:;, respectively. In the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed f~r accumulated vacation days up to the maximum allowable accumulation. For financial reporting purposes, the City does not accrue vacation eam,~d but not pakl in the governmental funds since the liability will be funded from future resources. Vacation and sick leave are recorded as an expenditure when paid in governmental funds. The estimated liability for unused vacation for governmental funds is recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. Accumulated vacation leave of proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as it is earned by the employees. (M) ~S_omp~rative Total Data Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in the accompanying combined financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the City's financial position and operations. However, comparative data (i.e., presentation of prior year totals by fund type) have not been presented in each of the statements, since their inclusion would make the statements unduly complex and difficult to read. Certain amounts relating to 199-'; have been reclassified in the accompanying financial statements in order to conform with the 1996 presentation. (N) Total ~,'olumns on Combined Statements Total columns on the combined statements are captioned "Totals (Memorandum Only)" to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position or results of operations, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. (0) Pension Plans The City of Bossier City, Louisiana, the Bossier Medical Center, and the State of Louisiana collectively have six pension plans which cover substantially all employees who meet certain length of service requirements. See note 9 for details of the~e plans. 

24 (Continued) 
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(16) 

(17) 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
Deferred _C_o_.m_l)ensation Plan 

It is the opinion of management that the City has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The City believes that it is unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general creditors in the: future. Investments are managed by the plan's trustee under a life insurance contract. Cost i9~Ex~.ess_of Acquired Net A~e~t In 1995, Bossier Medical Center purchased the net assets of physician employee practices. The cost in excess of tae fair value of the net assets of the physician practices acquired in the amount of $881,221 is amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the physicans' contracts with the Hospital, not exceeding five years. The accumulated amortization totaled $356,446 at Dex:ember 31, 1996. Amortization expense totaled $194,112 for 1996 ancL is included in depreciation and amortization expense. The physician practice acquisition was financed with an unsecured loan agreement. The 9.25% loan was repaid in full during 1996. Accountinp Chanees A. The City implemented GASB Statement No. 23, Accounting and Financial Reporthzg for Refundings of Debt Reported by Proprietary Activities. This statement established standard:; of accounting and financial reporting for current refundings and advance refundings resulting in defeasance of debt reported by proprietary activities. The statement requires that the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt be deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense in a systematic and rational manner over the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichevel is shorter. On the balance sheet, the deferred amount should be reported as a deduction from or an addition to the new debt liability. See note 9 for disclosure of the City's refunding activity and compliance with GASB Statement No. 23. 
59 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

Insurance Fund: 1995 1996 Liability Insurance Fund: 1995 1996 Postretirement Benef 

Accrued Claims January L 
357,270 311,285 
167,831 189,347 

Claims ~ncu~ed 
1,753,601 2,548,871 
798,198 1,033,365 

Claims Paid 
1,799,586 2,378,925 
776,682 702,871 

Accmed Claims December 3 |, 
311,285 481,231 
189,347 519,841 

As an established practice, the City provides for a portion of the health care costs of all retirees that meet the m nimum service requirements of the retirement plan (as described in note 9) in which the employee participates. These costs are accounted for on a pay- as-you-go basis. At December 31, 1996, 106 retirees are currently eligible to receive or are receiving benefits under the plan. The costs of providing these benefits totaled approximately $179,708 for 1996. 

Grant Disallowances The City participates in federally assisled grant programs, principally Community Development Block Grant, and various constructions grants. These programs are subject to program compliance audits under the Single Audit Act. Such audits could lead to requests for reirabursement by the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant..;. City management believes that the amount of disallowances, if any, which may arise from future audits will not be material. RcvcnneL_Fro__m___the Stal:e of LQui_s_i_a~ The General Fund receives ,tarious revenues from the State of Louisiana including cigarette tax, beer tax, traffic signalization, and Louisiana Downs revenues. Financial difficulties at the state level may result in the reduction or elimination of certain revenues to be received by the City in future years. 
58 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
PensiQn Fug_~s According to existing legislative acts of the State of Louisiana, the City of Bossier City is required to reimburse the Firemen's Pension and ReLief Fund and the Policemen's Pension and Relief Fv nd for operating deficits that may occur in any fiscal year. Insurance Funds The City adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues (GASB 10), in 1995. Inteinal service funds were already being utilized to account for the risk activities and the internal service funds were recording the receipts from the various funds as revenue and the paying funds were recording the payments as expenditures/exper ses. The following disclosures have also been added to comply with the requirements of GASB 10. 

Bossier Medical Center p~icipates in the Louisiana Hospital Association Trust Fund and the State of Louisiana Patients' Compensation Fund for medical malpractice claims. The Louisiana Hospital Association Trust Fund provides malpractice insurance coverage to Bossier Medical Center for claims up to $100,000 and the State of Louisiana Patients' Ccmpensation Fund provides an additional $400,000 of coverage. These funds provide coverage on an occurrence basis. As a participant in the State of Louisiana Patients' Compensation Fund, Bossier Medical Center has a statutory limitation of liability which provides that no award can be rendered against it in excess of $500,000, plus interest and costs. The Hospital is self-insured for employee medical claims up to $75,000 per individual per year. Insurance co cerage on claims exceeding $75,000 but not greater than $1,000,000 is provided by a commercial insurance carrier. A reconciliation of changes in the aggregate liabilities for claims for the self-insurance funds is as follows: 

(Continued) 



(13) 

(14) 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
(B) Fund 1)eficits The Insurance Fund had a deficit in retained earnings of $246,457 at December 3 l, 1996. Although the deficit had been reduced in prior years, the deficit increased by $164,473 in 1996. This deficit is due to medical claims exceeding revenues in recent years, and due to several large, unexpected claims near the end of 1996. The City plans to make the contributions necessary to eliminate the deficit in 1997. Fede~d and ._S~ate Fin~n__cial Ass~.tmlce Federal and State governmental units represent an important source of supplementary funding to finance housing, employment, and construction programs, and other activities beneficial to the community. These funds, primarily in the form of grants, are recorded in the. General and Special Revenue Funds. A grant receivable is recorded when the City has a right to reimbursement under the related grant. The grants normally specify the purpose for which the funds may be used and are audited annually under the single audit as mandated by the Single Audit Act of 1984. During 1996, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 24, Accounting atwl Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance. This standard requires the City to report in the financial statements on-behalf salary and fringe benefit payments made by the State of Louisiarm to certain groups of City employees. Supplementary salary payments are made by the state to certain groups of employees. The City is not legally responsible for these salaries. Therefore, the basis for recognizing the revenue and expenditure payments is the actual contribution from the state. For 1996 and 1995 respectively, the state paid supplemental salaries to the following gronps of employees: Fire Department employees $473,936 and $405,050; Police Department employees $409,883 and $364,301; and City marshal employees (a component unit) $15,616 and $13,334. CommiLm~nts an_d Contineencie~/ Construction Projects There are certain construction projects in progress at December 31, 1996. These include, among others, various phases of the Red River Parkway project, projects associated with enhancement to the wastewater treatment plants, and the Shed Road project. As approved by the voters, $22,000,000 in sales tax revenue bonds have been issued to fund the Red River Parl~way and other projects. The City has issued approximately $16,690,000 in utility revenue bonds to fund the wastewater treatment plant improvements and other related utility improvement projects. Also, $5,083,524 in riverboat gaming revenues has been transferred to the Water and Sewer Fund to help fund utility improvement projects. 

56 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

.Fun A 

Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

Special revenue funds: Metropolitan Plant ing Commission Fund - general government - administration Civic Center Fund - capital outhty Fire Improvements and Operations Fund - capital outlay 

Budget 
$ 104,790 75,000 35,000 

Actual on a Budgetary Unfavorable Basis Variance 
115,068 207,318 (10,278) O32,318) 42,145 (7,145) The unfavorable variance,; in public safety - fire is due primarily to workers compensation cMms. See note 13. The Civic Center Fund unfavorable balance of $132,318 is due to the 1996 operating budget not reflecting capital project appropriations. All budgets are adopted on a basis substantially consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) except that: (1) state supplemental pay is not a budgeted expenditure and (2) administrative expenditures allocated to the State and Federal Grant Special Revenue Fund are budgeted in the General Fund. Adjustments necessary to zonvert the expenditures at the end of the year on the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis are as follows: 

Budgetary basis State supplemental pay: Public Safety - Fire Public Safety - Police Marshal 

General Fu_uM Special Revenue Funds $ 22,080,694 2,007,243 
473,936 409,883 15.616 Administrative cost~; of State and Federal Grant Special Revenue Fund (125,604) Special Revenue Funds without operating budget~; GAAP basis 
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CHY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA No':es to Combined Financial Statements 
accordance with the intent of the original bond ordinance. The transfer of funds of $1,510,387 is reflected as a residual equity transfer out in the Consolidated Debt Service Fund, The residual equity transfer in was reflected as follows in the funds e, ffected: Residual eq aity transfer in: Jail and Municipal Building Fund Streets and Drainage Fund Riverboat Gaming Capital Projects Fund 
Addition to contributed capital - Department of Water and Sewerage Fund 

Rudpet C.omnarisons and Fund _D__efieits 

211,447 377,585 60,413 649,445 
_860,942 $ ~510,3.87 

(A) Budget Comparisons :For those funds f3r which a budget to actual comparison was made, actual expenditures on a budgetary basis exceeded budgeted expenditures on a line item basis as; follows Actual on a Budgetary Unfavorable Fund Bud.BuC_g~ Basis__ Variar~ce General Fund: General government: Administration Municipal building Finance City garage Traffic engineerir g and safety Purchasing Engineering Public works Animal control Herbicide Public safety - fire Public safety - police Highways and streets Culture and recreation Marshal's office 

220,772 691,047 463,344 475,053 594,440 272,315 488,398 191,969 221,023 126,817 4,754,735 6,776,152 681,827 1,208,169 313,831 

227,839 732,967 481,138 477,542 652,346 288,274 503,733 259,369 223,646 140,221 5,112,757 6,820,904 724,786 1,267,192 315,376 

(7,067) 41,920) 17,794) (2,489) 57,906) 15,959) 15,335) 67,400) (2,623) 13,404) 358,022) 44,752) 42,959) 59,023) (1,545) 
(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
(C) Operatin_og_ Transfers A reconciliation of cperating transfers follows 
General Fund Special revenue funds: Metropolitan Plann ng Commission Fun :1 Fire Improvements and Operations Fund Jail and Municipal Buildings Fund Streets and Drainage Fund Debt service funds - Parkway Sales Tax Bond Sinking and Reserve Fund Capital projects funds: Parkway' Cag[tal Pv.,iects Fund Parkway Sales Tax Bond Fund Enterprise funds - Bossier Medical Center Fund 

Year ended Dece~nI~er 31. 1996 Year ended December 31. 1995 La $ 2,290,000 51,600 2,700,000 51,000 
51.600 

9g~42 
180,000 455,000 105,000 98.042 

-- 550.000 

51.000 1,150,000 625,000 325.000 -- 150,000 tSO~O0 ---- -- 50,000 
$ __2_,439,64_2 2,439,642 ~000 2,901,000 I)1 1987, the City Cc,uncil adopted an ordinance by which annual transfers will bc made from Bossier Medical Center to various funds of the City. In accordance with the ordinance, $550,000 was transferred in 1996. Future transfers are subject to various financial ratios and earnings of the Bossier Medical Center. 

(D) Residu_~l__~,quity Transfer~ During 1996, $5,083,524 was transferred from the Riverboat Gaming Fund and recorded as a contribution in the Water and Sewer Fund for the purpose of funding various ulility constmctkm projects. During 1995, the City advance refunded its remaining outstanding general obligation debt of $740,003 (note 5), whose debt service was accounted for in the Consolidated Debt Service Fund. After defeasing the outstanding bonds, excess funds related to these bonds were available in the Consolidated Debt Service Fund. The excess funds were transferred to various other funds to be used in 
53 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Not,~s to Combined Financial Statements 
Other Reauired lndi~ (A) J_nterfund.Receivables and l~avables Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 1996 were as follows: Fund General Fund Internal Service Fund - Liability Insurance Fund Enterprise funds - Water and Sewer 
(B) ~egments.of Enterprise Aetj_v.jtAes 

operating revenues Operating expenses: Depreciation Other 
Wa~r and Sewer $ 8.92,2.fiTd 
1,512,986 

Operating income (loss) $ ml2392__29_5_ Operating transfers in (out) $ ~-:== =C'- 

Hospital Services 

Interfund Receivables $ 165,000 $ 165.000 

Emergency Medical Services _.5_1,028.410 1.646.624 3,023,713 45.867.236 48,890.949 101,532 1,578.325 1.679.857 

lnterfund Payables 161,000 4,000 165,000 

Zoaal 61,602.555 4,638,231 53.467.801 58.106.032 __2,137,461 (33,233) 3~496,523 
__ (550,000) Net income (loss) $ _1~4__18~ 1_06 1,403,941 Contributi ceived $ 5,814,_709 Assets Bonds payable Fund equity Net working capital 

$ 656_29~5~_6 $ ~Q68~ 1_5.6 $ ~571,925 5,710.000 3.__4,897,322 16,059.992 

550.000 (16,772) 2,805,275 5.814.709 757.428 110.408.639 
595,121 201,167 85,064,368 22~5498,743 Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment $ 1~5_84~164 677,860 189,016 2,451.040 52 (Continued) 
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crr~f OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
Percentage of City contributions to annual coverect payroll: Firemen's Fund Policemen's Fund BMC Fund 

!~9~(1) 1995 1994 
371.5 ~a 6.9 221.8 4,075.2 6.7 170.4 1,373.7 6.5 

(1) Amounts fi)r 1996 were calculated using actuarial accrued liability for each plan which differs insignificantly from the pension benefit obligation. 

ease C.ommitments 

Bossier Medical Center has future minimum lease payments under operating leases that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 1996, as follows: Year Ending nber 31, 1997 lC~98 1~99 2(,00 2(91 Total minimum lease payments Total rental expense for 1996 and 1995 for leases was $1,839,564 and $2,109,533, 

51 

Minimum Lease Payments $ 176,660 176,660 137,483 109,500 23.050 
all City and Bossier Medical Center operating respectively. 

(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Note:; to Combined Financial Statements 

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include: (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 8 percent for the Employees' System and 7 percent for the MPERS and the FFRS and (b) projected salary increases of 5.5 percent for the Employees' System, increases based upon Department of Commerce publications for the MPERS, and increases of between 4.0 and 8.3 percent for the FFRS. 
Actuarial value of as ~ets available for benefits Actuarial accrued liability Estimated annual contribution for 1995/1996 Total payroll Employer contributions for 199511996 Employee contributions for 1995/1996 Percentage of employer contributions to total payroll Percentage of employee contributions to total payroll (E) Trend Informatior 

Employee's ~t~l MPERS FFRS 
$ 318,271,740 839,234,664 417,294,158 377,279,030 812,078,530 476,872,571 1,806,566 34,234,222 1,331,454 1,749,252 3.9% 5.1% 

21,328,433 104,741,407 9,582,485 8,168,543 9.1 7.8 

12,528,250 68,320,303 6,248,566 5,556,319 9.1 8.1 

(1) 1995 1994 Percentage of net assets available for benefits to pension benefit obligation: Firemen's Fund 30.6% Policemen's Fund 20.3 BMC Fund 100.2 Percentage of unfimded pension benefit obligation to annual covered payroll: Firemen's Fund 5,491.5 Policemen's I'und t~/a BMC Fund nv'a 

31.6 20.9 82.7 
2,861.9 56,003.9 9.7 

30.3 20.8 86.3 
2,339.4 18,578.8 8.0 (Continued) 



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
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KPMG Peat Marwick LLP 1900 Commercial Nati 3nal Towe 333 Texas Street Shreveport, LA 71101-.";692 

INDEPENDENT A S~C_HEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
The Honorable George Dement, Mayor and Members of the City Council City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements and the combining, individual fund, and account group financial statements and schedules of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana as of and for file year ended December 31, 1996, and have issued our report thereon dated February 28, 1997. These financial statements ~e the responsibility of the management of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of tile United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting p:inciples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our andit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements, and the combining, individual fund, and account group financial statements and schedules of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana, taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of federal financial assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. The information in that schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose, combining, individual fund, and account group financial statements and schedules and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements and the combining, individual fund, and account group financial statemeats and schedules taken as a whole. 

February 28, 1997 



Fiscal 
1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Bonded Debt to Total General Expenditures Fiscal years ended December 31, 1987 through December 31, 1996 
Principal Interest $ 904,000 945,000 996,000 660,000 675,000 690,000 490,000 490,000 493,389 (3) ---(4) 

321,660 274,147 228,~91 188,{,76 158,296 130,182 103,214 77,211 49.[44 

Total Debt ~rvice 1,225,660 1,219,147 1,224,591 848,676 833,396 820,182 593,214 567,311 543,233 

Total General Expenditures (1 11,819,405 10,779,183 11,310,504 12,731,766 13,771,063 16,334,950 17,108,435 18,139,723 21,087,187 22,854,.525 
(2) (5) 

Table 9 

Debt Service as a Percentage of Total Genera Expenditur~~ 

Notes: (I) Includes General Fund expenditures ~nly. (2) In 1992, the Solid Waste Disposal F~nd was reestablished as a department within the General Fund (3) Does not include $741,981 paid by the City to advancc: refund bonds. (4) All general bonded debt was advance refunded in 1995. (5) In 1995, general expenditures began including state supplemental pay. 
Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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0.37 1.31 0.83 6.67 6.05 5.02 3.47 3.13 2.58 


